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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2011

or

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from              to             

Commission File Number 000-31623

STEC, INC.
(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)
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CALIFORNIA 33-0399154
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

3001 Daimler Street

Santa Ana, CA 92705-5812
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(949) 476-1180

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See definitions of �accelerated filer,� �large accelerated filer,� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer x Accelerated Filer ¨

Non-Accelerated Filer ¨  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant�s common stock, par value $0.001, as of October 24, 2011 was 46,011,753.
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PART I � FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STEC, INC.

UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

September 30,
2011

December 31,
2010

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 161,185 $ 170,457
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $3,663 at September 30, 2011 and $3,853 at December 31,
2010 47,617 47,831
Inventory 82,434 88,968
Other current assets 4,579 4,606

Total current assets 295,815 311,862

Leasehold interest in land 2,561 2,596
Property, plant and equipment, net 35,938 35,037
Goodwill 1,682 1,682
Other long-term assets 6,379 5,173
Deferred income taxes 13,929 9,304

Total assets $ 356,304 $ 365,654

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 13,740 $ 25,762
Accrued and other liabilities 15,570 13,470

Total current liabilities 29,310 39,232

Other long-term payables 6,561 4,248
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9) �  �  
Shareholders� Equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 20,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding �  �  
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 47,153 shares issued and outstanding as of
September 30, 2011 and 51,046 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2010 47 51
Additional paid-in capital 138,704 169,127
Retained earnings 181,682 152,996

Total shareholders� equity 320,433 322,174

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 356,304 $ 365,654

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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STEC, INC.

UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Net revenues $ 72,529 $ 86,074 $ 249,924 $ 186,231
Cost of revenues 39,317 46,151 139,592 107,000

Gross profit 33,212 39,923 110,332 79,231

Sales and marketing 5,835 5,090 17,554 13,693
General and administrative 7,332 7,068 22,646 21,106
Research and development 14,521 12,074 39,508 32,094
Special charges (Note 7) �  625 �  577

Total operating expenses 27,688 24,857 79,708 67,470

Operating income 5,524 15,066 30,624 11,761
Other income 6 248 49 637

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 5,530 15,314 30,673 12,398
Provision for income taxes (686) (1,695) (1,987) (1,195) 

Income from continuing operations 4,844 13,619 28,686 11,203

Discontinued operations (Note 8):
Loss from operations of Consumer Division �  (3) �  (261) 
Benefit for income taxes �  1 �  109

Loss from discontinued operations �  (2) �  (152) 

Net income $ 4,844 $ 13,617 $ 28,686 $ 11,051

Net income per share:
Basic:
Continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 0.27 $ 0.56 $ 0.22
Discontinued operations �  �  �  �  

Total $ 0.10 $ 0.27 $ 0.56 $ 0.22

Diluted:
Continuing operations $ 0.09 $ 0.26 $ 0.55 $ 0.22
Discontinued operations �  �  �  �  

Total $ 0.09 $ 0.26 $ 0.55 $ 0.22

Shares used in per share computation:
Basic 50,610 50,843 51,108 50,612
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Diluted 51,206 51,880 52,181 51,221

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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STEC, INC.

UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 28,686 $ 11,051
Loss from discontinued operations �  152
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 9,582 9,256
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 20 26
Non-cash special charges and impairment loss �  539
Accounts receivable (benefit) provision (156) 77
Deferred income taxes (3,670) (3,634) 
Stock-based compensation expense 9,682 6,532
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements (1,622) (1,631) 
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 370 38,967
Inventory 6,534 (45,192) 
Leasehold interest in land 35 (64) 
Other assets 799 (932) 
Accounts payable (14,712) 1,958
Income taxes 4,904 1,356
Accrued and other liabilities (630) (3,168) 
Cash flows used in discontinued operations �  (261) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 39,822 15,032

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investments �  (4,998) 
Sales of short-term investments �  14,998
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (8,741) (4,963) 
Other (244) 220

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (8,985) 5,257

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of common shares (43,721) �  
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2,916 2,979
Excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements 1,622 1,631
Taxes paid related to net-share settlement of equity awards (926) �  

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (40,109) 4,610

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (9,272) 24,899
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 170,457 135,658

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 161,185 $ 160,557

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing activities:
$ 2,298 $ 156
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Additions to property, plant and equipment acquired under accounts payable and accrued and other
liabilities

See accompanying notes to unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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STEC, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 � Basis of Presentation

The accompanying interim unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of STEC, Inc., a California corporation, and its subsidiaries
(the �Company�), have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (�GAAP�) for
interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. The unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of the Company and each of its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal and recurring adjustments and the
special charges discussed in Note 7) considered necessary for a fair statement of the consolidated financial position of the Company as of
September 30, 2011, the consolidated results of operations for each of the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the
consolidated results of cash flows for each of the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 have been included. These interim unaudited
condensed consolidated financial statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial
statements and, therefore, should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes contained in the Company�s
most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�). The December 31, 2010 balances reported
herein are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements included in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2010. The results for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected for the full year. Certain amounts
previously reported have been reclassified to conform to the 2011 presentation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (e.g., sales returns, bad debts, inventory reserves and asset impairments), disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The
Company�s reported revenues are net of reserves for price protection, sales returns and sales and marketing incentives. Actual results could differ
significantly from those estimates.

Note 2 � Sales Concentration

As shown in the table below, customer concentrations of revenues of greater than 10% were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Customer A 32% 52% 29% 37% 
Customer B 22% * 19% 12% 
Customer C 16% * 23% *
Customer D * * * 17% 

* Less than 10%
Sales, which are derived from billings to customers, by geographic region are presented as a percentage of total revenues as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

United States 37% 46% 32% 42% 
Czech Republic 14% 17% 15% 12% 
Malaysia * * * 14% 
Singapore 37% 17% 41% 18% 
Other 12% 20% 12% 14% 

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 
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* Less than 10%
No other single foreign country accounted for more than 10% of revenues during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and
2010.
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STEC, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Note 3 � Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist principally of cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable. Carrying amounts of the Company�s
financial instruments approximate fair value due to their short maturities. Generally, the Company considers all highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into cash and have an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents.

As of September 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010, cash equivalents consisted of money market funds. The Company determined the fair value
of its cash equivalents based on �Level 1� inputs, which consist of quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash $ 90,665 $ 90,021
Money market funds 70,520 80,436

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 161,185 $ 170,457

Note 4 � Income Taxes

The Company recorded a provision for income taxes of $2.0 million and $1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and
September 30, 2010, respectively. The Company�s effective tax rates were 6.5% and 9.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and
September 30, 2010, respectively. The difference between the Company�s effective tax rate and the 35% federal statutory rate for the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 and September 30, 2010 resulted primarily from foreign earnings taxed at rates lower than the federal statutory rate,
partially offset by permanent differences between GAAP pre-tax income and taxable income. The decrease in the effective tax rate for the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 from the same period in 2010 was due primarily to a change in the revenue composition, which resulted in
increased international sales and earnings in jurisdictions outside of the U.S. that were taxed at rates lower than the U.S. federal statutory rate.
The decrease was also due to federal research and development tax credits of $742,000 from which the Company received income tax benefits in
the first nine months of 2011 but did not receive income tax benefits in the first nine months of 2010. As of September 30, 2010, the federal
government had not extended the federal research and development tax credits for the 2010 tax year. In December 2010, the federal government
retroactively applied the research and development tax credits for the full year 2010 and extended them through December 31, 2011.

The Company is currently under examination by the Internal Revenue Service (�IRS�) for the 2008 and 2009 tax years. In addition, the California
Franchise Tax Board (�FTB�) is currently examining the 2006 through 2008 tax years. Management believes that an adequate provision has been
made for any adjustments that may result from tax examinations. However, the outcome of tax audits cannot be predicted with certainty. If any
issues addressed in the Company�s tax audits are resolved in a manner not consistent with management�s expectations, the Company could be
required to adjust its provision for income tax in the period such resolution occurs. The Company anticipates that there will be changes to the
unrecognized tax benefit associated with uncertain tax positions due to the expiration of statutes of limitation, payment of tax on amended
returns, audit settlements and other changes in reserves. As of September 30, 2011, a current estimate of the range of changes that may occur
within the next twelve months cannot be made due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of these events.
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STEC, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Income from continuing operations before income taxes by foreign country in jurisdictions where the Company is assessed income tax consisted
of the following (in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Japan $ 191 $ 121 $ 863 $ 256
Taiwan 204 183 529 430
United Kingdom 120 214 351 306
India 97 �  134 �  
China 38 23 111 94
Italy (4) 51 73 119
Austria (1) 28 35 72
Germany (6) 23 34 74

$ 639 $ 643 $ 2,130 $ 1,351

The Company also had income (loss) from continuing operations in Malaysia and the Cayman Islands that was not subject to income tax as the
Company has an income tax holiday in Malaysia effective through September 30, 2027 and there are no income taxes assessed on corporate
income in the Cayman Islands.

The Company has not provided for U.S. taxes or foreign withholding taxes on approximately $97 million of undistributed earnings from its
foreign subsidiaries because the Company�s intent is to reinvest such earnings for the foreseeable future. Determination of the amount of
unrecognized deferred tax liability for temporary differences related to these undistributed earnings is not practicable; however, if these earnings
were distributed, foreign tax credits may become available under current law to reduce the resulting U.S. income tax liability.

As an incentive to establish operations in Malaysia, the Company was provided a fifteen-year income tax holiday and certain grants by the
Malaysian government subject to meeting certain conditions. This income tax holiday in Malaysia was originally effective through
September 30, 2022. In May 2011, the Company accepted an additional incentive package from the Malaysian government as part of its plan to
establish a research and development center in Malaysia. This incentive package includes a five-year extension through September 30, 2027 of
the existing income tax holiday term and certain research and development grants.

The impact of the Malaysia income tax holiday on our provision for income taxes and earnings per share are as follows (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Decrease in provision for income taxes $ 1,035 $ 1,206 $ 5,211 $ 2,694
Benefit of income tax holiday on earnings per share $ 0.02 $ 0.02 $ 0.10 $ 0.05

6
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STEC, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Note 5 � Net Income Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net income per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months 
Ended

September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

Numerator: Income from continuing operations $ 4,844 $ 13,619 $ 28,686 $ 11,203
Numerator: Loss from discontinued operations �  (2) �  (152) 

Numerator: Net income $ 4,844 $ 13,617 $ 28,686 $ 11,051

Denominator for net income per share (basic) 50,610 50,843 51,108 50,612
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock awards 596 1,037 1,073 609

Denominator for net income per share (diluted) 51,206 51,880 52,181 51,221

Net income per share (basic):
Continuing operations $ 0.10 $ 0.27 $ 0.56 $ 0.22
Discontinued operations �  �  �  �  

Total $ 0.10 $ 0.27 $ 0.56 $ 0.22

Net income per share (diluted):
Continuing operations $ 0.09 $ 0.26 $ 0.55 $ 0.22
Discontinued operations �  �  �  �  

Total $ 0.09 $ 0.26 $ 0.55 $ 0.22

Anti-dilutive shares excluded from net income per share calculation 4,544 3,042 2,754 1,872
Note 6 � Supplemental Balance Sheet Information

Inventory consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
Raw materials $ 65,765 $ 62,026
Work-in-progress 2,407 507
Finished goods 14,262 26,435

Total $ 82,434 $ 88,968

Other long-term assets consisted of the following (in thousands):
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As of September 30, 2011 As of December 31, 2010

Gross
Accumulated
Amortization Net Gross

Accumulated
Amortization Net

Developed technology (five years) $ 1,345 $ 1,087 $ 258 $ 1,070 $ 958 $ 112
Customer relationships (five years) 792 792 �  792 792 �  

Acquisition-related intangible assets 2,137 1,879 258 1,862 1,750 112
Technology licenses 8,517 2,396 6,121 6,771 1,710 5,061

Total $ 10,654 $ 4,275 $ 6,379 $ 8,633 $ 3,460 $ 5,173

The Company recorded amortization expense of $258,000 and $269,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
and $815,000 and $873,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Other long-term assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over a period of three to five years. Estimated other long-term asset amortization expense for the remainder of the years
ending December 31, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, and 2016 is $272,000, $1.5 million, $1.8 million, $1.8 million, $740,000 and $299,000,
respectively. Amortization is estimated to be completed as of the end of 2016.
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STEC, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

Accrued and other liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

September 30, 2011 December 31, 2010
Payroll costs $ 8,834 $ 10,028
Marketing 526 568
Other 6,210 2,874

Total $ 15,570 $ 13,470

Note 7 � Special Charges

Special charges consisted of the following (in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2010

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2010

Employee severance and termination benefits $ 625 $ 694
Gain on assets held for sale �  (117) 

Total special charges $ 625 $ 577

There were no special charges incurred during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011.

During the first quarter of 2009, the Company commenced the first phase of its restructuring plan that involved a reduction in its workforce
primarily at its Santa Ana, California headquarters as part of the transition of certain of its operations to its facility in Penang, Malaysia. During
the second quarter of 2010, the Company commenced the second phase of its restructuring plan that involved a reduction in its workforce, which
also primarily impacted its Santa Ana, California headquarters. The first and second phases of the restructuring plan were completed as of
March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2010, respectively. In connection with the second phase of the restructuring plan, the Company recorded
charges for employee severance and termination benefits of approximately $625,000 during the three months ended September 30, 2010. In
connection with both the first and second phases of the restructuring plan, the Company recorded charges for employee severance and
termination benefits of approximately $694,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2010. The Company recorded a gain on the sale of
impaired assets of approximately $117,000 during the nine months ended September 30, 2010.

Activity and liability balances related to the restructuring plan during the nine months ended September 30, 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

Restructuring balance, December 31, 2009 $ �  
Charged to costs and expenses 694
Cash payments (107) 

Restructuring balance, September 30, 2010 $ 587

All amounts accrued for employee severance and termination benefits were paid by December 31, 2010.
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The Company recognizes a liability for restructuring costs at fair value only when the liability is incurred. The two main components of the
Company�s restructuring plan have been related to workforce reductions and asset impairments. Workforce-related charges are accrued when it is
determined that a liability has been incurred, which is deemed to be after individuals have been notified of their termination dates and expected
severance benefits.

Note 8 � Discontinued Operations

On February 9, 2007, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement (�Purchase Agreement�) with Fabrik, Inc. (�Fabrik�) and Fabrik
Acquisition Corp. (together with Fabrik, the �Purchasers�) for the sale of assets relating to a portion of the Company�s business which was engaged
in the design, final assembling, sale, marketing and distribution of consumer-oriented products based on Flash memory, DRAM technologies
and external storage solutions known as the Consumer Division of the Company. The consideration paid to the Company pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement consisted of cash in the amount of approximately $43.0 million. The purchase price was subject to a post-closing
adjustment for accrued expenses, reserves on inventory, reserves on accounts receivable and overhead capitalization of the Consumer Division

8
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STEC, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

(�Purchase Price Adjustment�). Subsequent to the closing of the sale, the Purchasers disputed certain amounts calculated by the Company in
regards to the Purchase Price Adjustment. The original claim amount was approximately $6.7 million. In accordance with the Purchase
Agreement, both parties agreed to resolve their Purchase Price Adjustment disputes through a third-party arbitrator. During the arbitration
proceeding, the Purchasers conceded approximately $4.0 million of their original disputed amounts. In January 2008, the arbitrator rejected
substantially all of the Purchasers� claims. In March 2010, Fabrik filed a petition to confirm the January 2008 arbitration ruling, claiming it was
owed an additional $486,784 plus accrued interest from the Company. In April 2010, the Company filed a response to the petition defending its
position that Fabrik was seeking additional amounts outside of the arbitration ruling and was time barred from its attempt to modify or correct
the arbitration award. In May 2010, Fabrik withdrew its petition and the parties satisfactorily resolved their dispute in July 2010.

Operating results of the Consumer Division, which are accounted for as discontinued operations, for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2010, are summarized as follows (in thousands):

For the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2010

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2010

Net revenues $ �  $ �  

Loss from discontinued operations (3) (261) 
Benefit for income taxes 1 109

Loss from discontinued operations $ (2) $ (152) 

Note 9 � Commitments and Contingencies

Class Action Litigation

From November 6, 2009 through March 2, 2010, seven purported class action complaints were filed against the Company and several of its
senior officers and directors in the United States District Court for the Central District of California. The Court consolidated the complaints and
appointed Lead Plaintiffs. The Court did not consider the sufficiency of Lead Plaintiff�s initial consolidated complaint and instead replaced the
former Lead Plaintiffs with a new Lead Plaintiff. The new Lead Plaintiff filed a consolidated amended complaint that the Court dismissed
without prejudice. Thereafter, the new Lead Plaintiff filed a second amended complaint, purportedly on behalf of all persons and entities who
acquired the Company�s common stock between June 16, 2009 and February 23, 2010. The second amended complaint alleges claims against the
Company and several of its senior officers and directors for violations of Section 10(b) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 (the
�Exchange Act�) and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, and claims against several of its senior officers and directors for violations of Section 20A and
Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. In addition, the second amended complaint alleges claims against the Company, several of its senior officers
and directors, and four of its underwriters for violations of Section 11 and Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the �Securities Act�), and
claims against several of the Company�s senior officers and directors for violations of Section 15 of the Securities Act. The second amended
complaint seeks compensatory damages for all damages sustained as a result of the defendants� alleged actions and further seeks reasonable costs
and expenses, rescission, counsel fees, and other relief the Court deems just and proper. The defendants filed motions to dismiss and on June 17,
2011, the Court entered an order granting the underwriters� motion to dismiss the Securities Act claims without prejudice and denying the
Company�s motion to dismiss the Exchange Act claims. As a result, the discovery stay imposed by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
was lifted. The defendants answered the second amended complaint on July 15, 2011. At a status conference on October 11, 2011, the Court
revised the schedule of pre-trial deadlines and set a new trial date of July 24, 2012. The Company believes the lawsuit is without merit and
intends to vigorously defend itself. No amounts have been recorded in the consolidated financial statements for this matter as the Company
believes it is too early in the proceedings to determine an outcome.

On July 1, 2011, a purported class action complaint was filed against the Company and several of its senior officers and directors in the Superior
Court of Orange County, California. The complaint alleges claims against the Company, several of its senior officers and directors, and four of
its underwriters for violations of Section 11 and Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act, and further alleges claims against several of the
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Company�s senior officers and directors for violations of Section 15 of the Securities Act. The complaint, which arises out of the same underlying
factual allegations as the federal court class action discussed above, seeks compensatory damages and rescission or a rescissory measure of
damages where applicable, reasonable costs and expenses, including counsel fees and expert fees, and other relief the Court may deem just and
proper. On August 4, 2011, the defendants removed the action to the United States District Court for the Central District of California. The
plaintiffs moved to remand and on October 7, 2011, the Court entered an order remanding the case back to the Superior Court of Orange County,
California. The Company has not yet filed its response to the complaint. The Company
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believes the lawsuit is without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself. No amounts have been recorded in the consolidated financial
statements for this matter as the Company believes it is too early in the proceedings to determine an outcome.

Shareholder Derivative Litigation

From November 12, 2009 through December 3, 2009, four shareholder derivative actions were filed purportedly on the Company�s behalf against
several of its senior officers and directors in the Superior Court of Orange County, California. These cases were consolidated and stayed until
further order by the Court. Despite the stay, the Company and the individual defendants each filed demurrers to the consolidated complaint on
July 28, 2010, pursuant to court order. The plaintiffs moved to lift the stay and on September 9, 2011, the Court denied the plaintiffs� motion.
Additionally, two shareholder derivative actions were filed purportedly on the Company�s behalf against several of its senior officers and
directors in the United States District Court for the Central District of California. These two federal lawsuits were consolidated on April 13,
2010, and stayed by order of the Court until a ruling was made on the defendants� motions to dismiss the second amended complaint in the
federal securities class action lawsuit. The consolidated complaints in both the state and federal actions allege claims for breach of fiduciary
duties for insider selling and misappropriation of information, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corporate assets, unjust
enrichment and violations of the California Corporations Code (with respect to the state court action only) related to allegedly false and
misleading statements regarding the Company�s business and alleged illegal stock sales. The shareholder derivative actions generally seek
compensatory damages for all alleged losses sustained as a result of the defendants� alleged actions, including interest, reasonable costs and
expenses, corporate governance reforms, disgorgement of profits, treble damages (with respect to the state court action only), equitable relief
(with respect to the federal court action only), and other relief as the Court may deem just and proper. No amounts have been recorded in the
consolidated financial statements for these matters as the Company believes it is too early in the proceedings to determine an outcome.

Shareholder Demand

From January 5, 2010 through August 2, 2010, the Company received letters from counsel for four purported shareholders demanding that the
Company take action to remedy breaches of fiduciary duties by several of its senior officers and directors. The allegations in these letters are
similar to those found in the shareholder derivative complaints filed in state and federal court, and demand that the Company take action to
recover damages from its senior officers and directors and to correct alleged deficiencies in its internal controls. The demand letters state that if,
within a reasonable time, the Company�s board of directors has not commenced the requested action, or if the board of directors refuses to
commence the requested action, the named shareholders will commence derivative actions. In evaluating the demand letters, the independent
members of the Company�s board of directors conducted a review of the issues and allegations raised by the purported shareholders. After
considering a number of factors, including the legal and factual merits of the claims made in the demand letters, the independent members of the
Company�s board of directors unanimously determined that it would not be in the Company�s best interests to pursue the claims alleged in the
demand letters against any of the individuals mentioned therein. This determination was formally communicated to counsel for the four
purported shareholders on December 17, 2010. Counsel for two of the purported shareholders responded by letter dated July 13, 2011, further
demanding that the Company take action to remedy alleged breaches of fiduciary duties by several of its senior officers and directors. The
independent members of the Company�s board of directors are evaluating this July 13, 2011 letter.

Patent Litigation

On September 7, 2011, Solid State Storage Solutions, Inc., filed a complaint against the Company and several other defendants in the U.S.
District Court for the Eastern District of Texas. The lawsuit alleges that certain of our products and/or services infringe certain patents allegedly
owned by Solid State Storage Solutions, Inc., including some or all of U.S. Patents: Nos. 6,701,471, 7,234,087, 7,721,165, 6,370,059, 7,366,016,
7,746,697, 7,616,485, 6,341,085, 6,567,334, 6,347,051, 7,064,995, and 7,327,624. According to the complaint and the patents, these patents
relate to solid state drives employing a controller chip and a plurality of NAND flash devices. The complaint also alleges that the Company
induces and contributes to patent infringement by others. The complaint seeks unspecified monetary damages, attorney fees and expenses, and
injunctive relief against the Company. The Company believes the lawsuit is without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself. Due to the
early stage of this lawsuit and the inherent uncertainties of litigation, the Company is not able to predict either the outcome or a potential range
of losses, if any, at this time. Accordingly, the Company cannot estimate the effects of this complaint, if any, on the Company�s financial
condition.
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Other Legal Proceedings

As first disclosed in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (�SEC�) is conducting a formal investigation involving trading in the Company�s securities. The Company and certain of
the Company�s officers and employees, including its CEO and President, have received subpoenas in connection with the SEC�s investigation.
The Company is fully cooperating with the SEC in regards to this matter. On July 19, 2011, the Company received a �Wells Notice� from the
SEC, stating that the Staff of the SEC (the �Staff�) is considering recommending that the SEC initiate a civil injunctive action against the
Company, its CEO and President, charging them with violations of the antifraud and reporting provisions of the federal securities laws. Under a
process established by the SEC, the Company, its CEO and President have the opportunity to submit to the Staff any reasons of law, policy or
fact why they believe that the civil action should not be brought (a �Wells Submission�) before the Staff makes its formal recommendation to the
SEC regarding what action, if any, should be brought. On August 29, 2011, the Company, its CEO and President submitted a Wells Submission
to the SEC. The Company, its CEO and President intend to continue to cooperate with the SEC to attempt to resolve the Staff�s concerns, but
there can be no assurance that the SEC will decide not to bring an action against them.

The Company is involved in other suits and claims in the ordinary course of business, and the Company may from time to time become a party
to other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.

As is common in the industry, the Company currently has in effect a number of agreements in which it has agreed to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless certain of its suppliers and customers from damages and costs which may arise from the infringement by the Company�s products of
third-party patents, trademarks or other proprietary rights. In addition, the Company has entered into indemnification agreements with its
directors and certain of its officers that will require the Company, among other things, to indemnify them against certain liabilities that may arise
by reason of their status or service as directors or officers. The Company maintains director and officer insurance, which may cover certain
liabilities arising from its obligation to indemnify its directors and officers in certain circumstances. It is not possible to determine the maximum
potential amount under these indemnification agreements due to the limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unique facts and
circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Further, such indemnification agreements may not be subject to maximum loss clauses.
The scope of such indemnity varies, but may, in some instances, include indemnification for damages and expenses, including attorneys� fees.
The term of these indemnification agreements is generally perpetual any time after execution of the agreement. The maximum potential amount
of future payments the Company could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is unlimited. The Company has never
incurred significant costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnification agreements. As a result, and after consideration of
the Company�s current director and officer insurance coverage, the Company believes the estimated fair value of these agreements is minimal.
Accordingly, the Company has no liabilities recorded for these agreements as of September 30, 2011.

Note 10 � Credit Facility

On November 23, 2009, the Company�s subsidiary, STEC Malaysia, entered into an agreement for a short-term credit facility (the �Short-term
Facility�) with Deutsche Bank (Malaysia) Berhad. The agreement allows STEC Malaysia to borrow an aggregate principal amount of $10 million
in the form of letters of credit, trust receipts, bills acceptances/financing, banker�s acceptances and banker�s and shipping guarantees which are
commonly used to conduct business in Asia. Credit under the Short-term Facility will be available until notice of termination by either party.
Borrowings under the Short-term Facility will bear interest at various rates with repayments due between 30 days and 14 months, depending on
the form of borrowing. The Short-term Facility is guaranteed by STEC, Inc. and contains customary affirmative and negative covenants. As of
September 30, 2011, there was approximately $200,000 of banker�s guarantees outstanding under the Short-term facility and STEC Malaysia was
in compliance with all required covenants. The purpose of the Short-term Facility is to facilitate general business transactions and fund working
capital requirements for STEC Malaysia, on an as-needed basis.

Note 11 � Shareholders� Equity

The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the �2000 Plan�) was adopted by the Company�s board of directors and approved by its shareholders in June 2000.
On April 17, 2006, the 2000 Plan was amended and restated by the board of directors and approved by the Company�s shareholders on May 25,
2006. The 2000 Plan provided for the direct issuance or sale of shares and the grant of options to purchase shares of the Company�s common
stock to officers and other employees, non-employee board members and consultants. Under the 2000 Plan, eligible participants were granted
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options to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price not less than 100% of the fair market value of those shares on the grant date. In
addition, the 2000 Plan as amended and restated, allowed for the issuance of restricted stock units to officers and other employees,
non-employee board members and consultants. The 2000 Plan expired pursuant to its terms on February 28, 2010, and no further shares may be
issued under the 2000 Plan.
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The 2010 Incentive Award Plan (the �2010 Plan�) was adopted by the Company�s board of directors on March 26, 2010, and was approved by its
shareholders on May 27, 2010. The 2010 Plan provides for the direct issuance or sale of shares and the grant of options to purchase shares of the
Company�s common stock to officers and other employees, non-employee board members and consultants. On May 19, 2011, the Company�s
shareholders approved an amendment to the 2010 Plan to increase the number of shares reserved for issuance thereunder by 2,000,000 shares to
6,600,000 shares. The other terms and conditions of the 2010 Plan were not changed. Under the 2010 Plan, eligible individuals may be granted
options to purchase shares of common stock at an exercise price not less than 100% of the fair market value of those shares on the grant date.
Other types of equity awards that may be granted under the 2010 Plan include performance awards, dividend equivalents, deferred stock units,
stock payments, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights and other incentive awards. The Company�s board of directors,
its compensation committee, or its equity awards committee determines the eligibility and vesting schedules for awards granted under the 2010
Plan. Options expire within a period of not more than ten years from the date of grant. Restricted stock units are share awards that entitle the
holder to receive shares of the Company�s common stock upon vesting.

As of September 30, 2011, the 2010 Plan provided for the issuance of up to 1,408,029 shares of common stock.

A summary of the option activity under the 2000 Plan and 2010 Plan is as follows:

Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Term
Aggregate

Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 4,745,005 $ 12.84
Granted 1,893,600 $ 11.70
Exercised (433,357) $ 6.73
Expired/forfeited (236,725) $ 17.01

Outstanding at September 30, 2011 5,968,523 $ 12.76 7.8 $ 5,540,384

Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2011 5,411,346 $ 12.70 7.7 $ 5,339,006

Exercisable at September 30, 2011 2,024,373 $ 11.58 5.5 $ 4,114,872

The above intrinsic values are before applicable taxes, based on the Company�s closing stock price of $10.15 on September 30, 2011.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, the Company received $2.9 million in cash proceeds from the exercise of 433,357 options
and $1.6 million for excess tax benefits from share-based payment arrangements. The intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 was $5.8 million.

A summary of the Company�s weighted average fair value for stock option activity during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 is as
follows:

Options

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value

Total
Unrecognized
Compensation

Expense

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Years to
Vest
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Non-vested stock options at December 31, 2010 2,999,300 $ 8.78
Granted 1,893,600 $ 7.19
Vested (739,625) $ 8.58
Forfeited (209,125) $ 9.97

Non-vested stock options at September 30, 2011 3,944,150 $ 7.99 $ 27,884,859 3.0

The total fair value of stock options vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was $6.3 million.
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The 2011 grants were awarded pursuant to the 2010 Plan with annual vesting of 25% and contractual lives that are consistent with those of prior
years. The per share fair values of the options granted in the nine months ended September 30, 2011 were estimated with the following weighted
average assumptions:

Expected term (years) 5.8
Risk-free interest rate 1.5% 
Volatility 69.7% 
Dividend rate 0.0% 

The grant date fair value per share of the 2011 restricted stock units was determined by the closing price of the common stock on the issuance
date. Each unit represents the right to receive one share of the Company�s common stock as each restricted stock unit vests.

A summary of the restricted stock unit activity under the 2000 Plan and 2010 Plan is as follows:

Restricted
Stock Units

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair
Value

Total
Unrecognized
Compensation

Expense

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Years to
Vest

Non-vested restricted stock units at December 31, 2010 1,090,954 $ 14.38
Granted 786,263 $ 11.55
Vested (196,104) $ 13.74
Forfeited (64,400) $ 14.20

Non-vested restricted stock units at September 30, 2011 1,616,713 $ 13.09 $ 18,781,398 3.3

Of the 196,104 restricted stock units that vested during the nine months ended September 30, 2011, 147,268 were net-share settled such that the
Company withheld shares with value equivalent to the employees� minimum statutory obligation for the applicable income and other
employment taxes. The number and value of the shares withheld were 57,361 shares and $926,000, respectively, during the nine months ended
September 30, 2011. The value of the total shares was based on the value of the restricted stock units on their vesting date as determined by the
Company�s closing stock price. Total payments for the employees� tax obligations to the tax authorities were $926,000 and are reflected as a
financing activity within the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. These net-share settlements had the effect of share repurchases by the
Company as they reduced and retired the number of shares that would have otherwise been issued as a result of the vesting and did not represent
an expense to the Company.

The following table sets forth the total stock-based compensation expense resulting from stock options and restricted stock units included in the
Company�s unaudited condensed consolidated statements of income (in thousands):

For the Three Months
Ended September 30,

For the Nine Months
Ended September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Cost of revenues $ 154 $ 59 $ 391 $ 251
Sales and marketing 664 450 1,676 1,219
General and administrative 1,332 862 3,543 2,317
Research and development 1,522 1,129 4,072 2,745
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Total stock-based compensation expense $ 3,672 $ 2,500 $ 9,682 $ 6,532

From time to time, the Company�s board of directors has authorized various programs to repurchase shares of its common stock depending on
market conditions and other factors. In November 2009, the Company�s board of directors approved a share repurchase program effective
November 10, 2009, enabling the Company to repurchase up to $75 million of its common stock over an 18-month period that expired on
May 9, 2011. The Company did not make any share repurchases under this program during 2010 or 2011.

13

Edgar Filing: STEC, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 27



Table of Contents

STEC, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

On August 4, 2011, the Company�s board of directors approved a share repurchase program that authorized the Company to repurchase up to $15
million (the �$15 million Program�) of its common stock effective from August 9, 2011 through August 31, 2011. During the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2011, the Company repurchased 1,546,700 shares of common stock at an average price per share of $9.72,
including commissions, to complete the authorized repurchases under the $15 million Program.

On August 29, 2011, the Company�s board of directors approved a share repurchase program that authorized the Company to repurchase up to
$40 million (the �$40 million Program�) of its common stock effective from September 15, 2011 through March 30, 2012. For the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2011, the Company repurchased 2,919,074 shares of common stock at an average price per share of $9.83,
including commissions, under the $40 million Program. In October 2011, the Company repurchased an additional 1,144,837 shares of its
common stock at an average price per share of $9.95, including commissions, to complete the authorized repurchases under the $40 million
Program.

Note 12 � New Accounting Pronouncements

The Company has implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that may impact its consolidated financial statements
and does not believe that there are any other new accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. These forward-looking statements often can be, but are not always, identified by the use of words such as �anticipate,� �assume,� �believe,�
�could,� �estimate,� �expect,� �goal,� �intend,� �may,� �might,� �plan,� �potential,� �predict,� �project,� �should,� and similar expressions, or the negative of such
expressions. They include, but are not limited to: statements regarding our revenue growth initiatives; growing acceptance, adoption and
qualification of solid-state drives (�SSDs�) within the enterprise-storage and enterprise-server markets; the evolving storage industry; changes in
the average selling prices of our products; the loss of, or reduction in sales to, any of our key customers; our ability to deliver new and enhanced
products on a timely basis; statements concerning customer adoption and utilization of our technologies and solutions; the capabilities and
performance of our products; the adoption of our products into new applications; our sales, operating results and anticipated cash flows; our
ability to forecast customer demand; the availability of certain components in our products that we obtain from a limited number of suppliers;
competition from other companies in our industry; changes in political and economic conditions and local regulations, particularly outside of the
United States; our ability to protect our intellectual property rights; and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

We base these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events, our assumptions regarding these
events and our knowledge of facts at the time the statements are made. These forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and
uncertainties, including those described in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q under the heading �Risk Factors� and in other filings we make
from time to time with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (�SEC�). Some of these risks and uncertainties may be outside our control
and our actual results could differ materially from our projected results. Please see our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K and the
information contained in our subsequent SEC filings for a further discussion of these and other risks and uncertainties applicable to our business.
We are not able to predict all of the factors that may affect future results. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q. Except as required by applicable laws or regulations, we do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Overview

STEC, Inc. (collectively with our subsidiaries, is referred to in this Report as �STEC�, �we�, �our� and �us�) is a leading global provider of SSDs that are
designed specifically for enterprise systems and applications that require high input and output (�IO�) capabilities with low latencies for fast access
to critical user data.

We design and develop our SSD controllers, enhance them with proprietary firmware and combine them with multi-sourced NAND Flash media
to form high-performance SSDs, which provide a level of IO performance not currently possible with traditional hard disk drives (�HDDs�). We
sell our SSDs to leading global enterprise hardware original equipment manufacturers (�OEMs�), which integrate them into products used in a
variety of industries including cloud computing, financial services, virtualization, Web 2.0, government, transportation, defense, e-commerce
and healthcare. We also manufacture small form factor Flash-based SSDs, cards and modules, as well as custom high density dynamic random
access memory (�DRAM�) modules for networking, communications and industrial applications. We are headquartered in Santa Ana, California
and have operations in Penang, Malaysia. We also have sales and engineering offices located in the U.S., Europe and Asia.

We market our products primarily to OEMs and OEM distributors, leveraging our custom design capabilities to offer memory solutions to
address their specific needs.

We are focusing on certain revenue growth initiatives, including:

� Continuing to develop and qualify customized SSDs, including our ZeusIOPS® and MACH product families;

� Expanding our product portfolio to include software offerings;
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� Adding new PCIe-based solid-state accelerator products; and

� Exploring new market opportunities that leverage our core SSD expertise.
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Over the past several years, we have expanded our custom design capabilities of Flash-based products for OEM applications. We have invested
significantly in the design and development of customized Flash controllers, firmware and hardware. Prior strategic acquisitions also have
enabled us to improve our Flash controller design capabilities, expand our product offerings, add intellectual property to our technology
portfolio and enhance our capabilities to use third-party controllers.

Operating Results Volatility

We have experienced volatility in our quarterly operating results and we expect this trend to continue for several reasons. First, the majority of
our sales are currently being generated from one product line (ZeusIOPS®) and a significant amount of our revenues are concentrated within a
small number of customers. A loss or reduction of sales to any one of our major customers or a decrease in demand for our ZeusIOPS® products,
may negatively impact our revenues on a quarterly basis. In addition, the introduction of new and enhanced versions of our products may shorten
the life cycle of our existing products, or replace sales of some of our current products, thereby offsetting the benefit of even a successful
product introduction, and may cause customers to defer purchasing our existing products in anticipation of the new and enhanced versions.
Conversely, customers may accelerate purchases of existing products and defer purchases of new life cycle products due to the cost and lead
times involved in the qualification of new products. Moreover, substantially all of our sales are transacted through individual customer purchase
orders as opposed to long-term contractual commitments. Each customer purchase order is unique and stands on its own and there is no
assurance that we will be able to obtain additional purchase orders under the same terms and dollar commitment levels with these customers in
future quarters. As a result, it is difficult to forecast our customers� demand as purchases in one period may not be indicative of purchases in
future periods. Also, the enterprise SSD market is relatively new and rapidly evolving with new competitors entering our markets. Many of these
competitors are large, conglomerate businesses with considerable resources. Currently, we are facing competition from SSD suppliers with
lower-cost, lower performance SATA-based drives with a connectivity bridge to a SAS or FC interface. These lower cost alternatives have been
gaining traction, which has resulted in a decrease of our market share at certain customers despite the performance and latency advantages of our
ZeusIOPS® drives. Furthermore, we believe that competitive SAS and/or FC based SSDs are in the process of being qualified or in some cases
have already been qualified at certain of our customers, which may lead to a reduction in orders of our ZeusIOPS® SSDs. Until we can further
diversify our customer base and product offerings, we believe that these factors and quarterly operating results volatility will continue to impact
our business for the foreseeable future.

Flash-based Products

Flash-based product revenue was $70.7 million and $78.1 million in the third quarter of 2011 and 2010, respectively. The quarterly decrease in
Flash-based product revenues was due primarily to a $21.9 million decrease in Flash-based product sales to one customer, partially offset by a
$16.2 million increase in Flash-based product sales to three customers. Sales of Flash-based products represented 98% and 91% of our total
revenues in the third quarter of 2011 and 2010, respectively.

A significant development in enterprise SSDs is the use of Multi Level Cell (�MLC�) Flash, which is more cost-effective than Single Level Cell
(�SLC�) Flash. Incorporating MLC Flash into SSDs is an increasingly important factor driving adoption of SSDs within the enterprise market
given the growing need for cost-effective, high-performance enterprise solutions. Our MLC-based SSDs are enhanced by our proprietary
technologies, including our CellCare� technology, which increases endurance of MLC Flash to meet enterprise life requirement levels and our
Secure Array of Flash ElementsTM (S.A.F.E.) technology, which provides added data reliability. Our MLC-based SSDs also use our proprietary
controller technology to achieve fast write speeds and improved performance.

A major area of our overall research and development investment has been applied to developing and advancing our SSD technologies. We
believe the advantages of SSDs are currently being defined in several distinct markets including: a) enterprise-storage applications, b)
enterprise-server applications, and c) government, defense and industrial applications. We see opportunities to leverage our SSD expertise across
each of these markets where we believe our technology can outperform existing HDD solutions.

In April 2011, we acquired certain assets of Knowledge Quest Infotech Private Limited (�KQI�), a software development company based in Pune,
India. The portfolio of acquired assets includes KQI�s intellectual property rights. In addition, we hired approximately 30 key employees of KQI
to augment our existing software development team. The acquisition of certain assets of KQI was not material to our historical consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. We believe that this acquisition will provide us with additional system design, storage
software and virtualization expertise to leverage our existing development of SSD solutions. We expect to continue to make strategic
investments to advance our product portfolio.
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In September 2011, we opened our new Storage Technology Innovation Center located in Pune, India. The design center provides us with
additional storage software development resources for such products as our recently announced EnhanceIO� SSD Cache Software, and for
next-generation solutions incubated from early proof of concept through product development and productization. We plan to strategically
utilize the Storage Technology Innovation Center and software development team to create software products which are complementary to our
already extensive enterprise-class solid-state portfolio. Software created by the center is being designed to enable customers to take full
advantage of SSD performance, endurance and reliability, which we expect will further drive widespread adoption of SSDs in the enterprise.

Although the enterprise Flash-based SSD market is relatively new, evolving and difficult to predict, we are encouraged by the variety of
applications that our SSDs are able to support. As more of our customers and end-users experience the benefits of SSD technology, we believe
that adoption will continue to expand. The increased use of data-tiering software by storage OEMs is also helping to increase SSD adoption as
the combination of data-tiering software and SSDs enhance the overall performance level of enterprise-storage systems. In addition, we employ
certain marketing programs and sales initiatives on a selective basis with our customers in an effort to help accelerate the adoption of our SSD
products.

DRAM Products

We also offer both monolithic DRAM modules and DRAM modules based on our proprietary stacking technology. We derived $1.5 million and
$8.0 million in revenues from the sale of DRAM products during the third quarter of 2011 and 2010, respectively. Sales of DRAM products
represented 2% and 9% of our total revenues in the third quarter of 2011 and 2010, respectively. The quarterly decrease in sales of DRAM
products was due primarily to a decrease in product sales to a single customer. Since our revenue growth initiatives are focused on sales of our
SSDs and sales of our DRAM products are made to a limited number of customers, we expect this variability will continue in the future.

Malaysia Income Tax Holiday

As an incentive to establish operations in Malaysia, we were provided a fifteen-year income tax holiday and certain grants by the Malaysian
government subject to meeting certain conditions. This income tax holiday in Malaysia was originally effective through September 30, 2022. In
May 2011, the Company accepted an additional incentive package from the Malaysian government as part of its plan to establish a research and
development center in Malaysia. This incentive package includes a five-year extension through September 30, 2027 of the existing income tax
holiday term and certain research and development grants. The impact of the Malaysia income tax holiday decreased the provision for income
taxes by $1.0 million or $0.02 per share during the third quarter of 2011, and decreased the provision for income taxes by $1.2 million or $0.02
per share in the third quarter of 2010.

Customers

Historically, a limited number of customers have accounted for a significant percentage of our revenues. Our ten largest customers accounted for
an aggregate of 91.2% of our revenues during the third quarter of 2011, compared to 90.4% of our revenues during the third quarter of 2010. See
Note 2, Sales Concentration, to our unaudited consolidated financial statements for a breakdown of customers accounting for more than 10% of
our total revenues during the first nine months of 2011 and 2010, respectively, and during the third quarter of 2011 and 2010, respectively. With
certain exceptions, sales of our products are generally made through individual purchase orders and, in certain cases, are made under master
agreements governing the terms and conditions of the customer relationships.

We expect that sales of our products to a limited number of customers will continue to account for a majority of our revenues in the foreseeable
future and believe that our financial results will depend in significant part upon the success of our customers. The composition of our major
customer base changes from quarter to quarter as the market demand for our products changes, and we expect this variability will continue in the
future. The loss of, or a significant reduction in purchases by, any of our major customers would harm our business, financial condition and
results of operations. See Item 1A, �Risk Factors�Historically, sales to a limited number of customers, particularly EMC Corporation, have
comprised a significant portion of our revenues and the loss of, or significant reduction in purchases by, any key customer could materially
impact our financial results.�

During March 2011, an earthquake and tsunami in northeastern Japan caused considerable damage to the country�s infrastructure. While we have
not sustained significant disruptions in our ability to procure components for our products due to these events in Japan, some of our customers
experienced direct or indirect disruptions in their supply chains which affected their ability to manufacture and sell their products to their
end-user customers. As a result, some customers were unable to obtain a sufficient supply of components required for their end products and
canceled orders for our products, which negatively impacted our operating results. In October 2011, Thailand�s infrastructure was severely
damaged by recent flooding. Since we do not have facilities in Thailand, our physical operations have not been directly impacted. However, we
are currently assessing the potential negative impact on our customers and their supply chains which could in turn impact our business. See
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Revenues by Geographic Region

Sales, which are derived from billings to customers, by geographic region are presented as a percentage of total revenues as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, For the Nine Months Ended September 30,
2011 2010 2011 2010

United States 37% 46% 32% 42% 
Czech Republic 14% 17% 15% 12% 
Malaysia * * * 14% 
Singapore 37% 17% 41% 18% 
Other 12% 20% 12% 14% 

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 

* Less than 10%
No other single foreign country accounted for more than 10% of revenues during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2011 and
2010.

Sales billed to customers in the United States decreased in the third quarter of 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, due primarily to a
decrease in product sales to one customer, partially offset by an increase in product sales to another single customer. Sales billed to customers in
the United States decreased in the first nine months of 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, due primarily to a decrease in product
sales to a single customer. Sales billed to customers in Singapore increased due primarily to an increase in product sales to two customers and
sales billed to customers in Malaysia decreased due primarily to a decrease in product sales to a single customer. Sales billed to customers in the
Czech Republic decreased in the third quarter of 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, due primarily to a decrease in product sales to a
single customer. Sales billed to customers in the Czech Republic increased in the first nine months of 2011, as compared to the same period in
2010, due primarily to an increase in product sales to a single customer.

Substantially all of our foreign sales are shipped internationally through our facility in Malaysia. For additional information regarding our
international sales, see Item 1A, �Risk Factors�We face risks associated with doing business in foreign countries, including foreign currency
fluctuations and trade barriers, that could lead to a decrease in demand for our products or an increase in the cost of the components used in our
products.�

Seasonality

We generally expect to experience some seasonality in our business resulting in lower sales in the first quarter and higher sales in the fourth
quarter of each year due to corporate customers seeking to spend their full capital budgets before the end of each year. Due to the volatility of
our business, concentration of our customers and limited adoption of SSDs in our markets, seasonality may not always apply. For example, we
do not expect to see the historical seasonal increase in sales during the fourth quarter of 2011 as we continue the transition to the next-generation
of our ZeusIOPS® SSDs and MACH16� SSDs.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain consolidated statement of operations data reflected as a percentage of revenues.

For the Three Months Ended
September 30,

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2011 2010 2011 2010
Net revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
Cost of revenues 54.2 53.6 55.9 57.5

Gross profit 45.8 46.4 44.1 42.5
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing 8.1 5.9 7.0 7.4
General and administrative 10.1 8.2 9.0 11.3
Research and development 20.0 14.0 15.8 17.2
Special charges 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.3

Total operating expenses 38.2 28.9 31.8 36.2
Operating income 7.6 17.5 12.3 6.3
Other income 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.4

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 7.6% 17.8% 12.3% 6.7

Comparison of Three Months Ended September 30, 2011 to Three Months Ended September 30, 2010

Net Revenues. Our revenues decreased 16% from $86.1 million in the third quarter of 2010 to $72.5 million in the third quarter of 2011 due
primarily to a 9% decrease in Flash-based product sales from $78.1 million in the third quarter of 2010 to $70.7 million in the third quarter of
2011 and an 81% decrease in sales of DRAM products from $8.0 million in the third quarter of 2010 to $1.5 million in the third quarter of 2011.
Within Flash-based product sales, shipments of our MACH products decreased 46% from $11.9 million in the third quarter of 2010 to $6.4
million in the third quarter of 2011 and shipments of our ZeusIOPS® SSDs into the enterprise market decreased from $59.1 million in the third
quarter of 2010 to $58.4 million in the third quarter of 2011. The quarterly decrease in Flash-based product revenues was due primarily to a
$21.9 million decrease in Flash-based product sales to one customer, partially offset by a $16.2 million increase in Flash-based product sales to
three customers. The quarterly decrease in sales of DRAM products was due primarily to a decrease in product sales to a single customer.

Our reported revenues are net of reserves for price protection, sales returns and sales and marketing incentives. With certain exceptions, sales of
our products are generally made through individual purchase orders and, in certain cases, are made under master agreements governing the terms
and conditions of the customer relationships. Some customers may have the ability to change, cancel or delay orders with limited or no penalties.
In the absence of a non-cancellable customer supply agreement, our ability to predict future sales is limited because a majority of our quarterly
product revenues come from orders that are received just prior to or within the same quarter. In addition, our SSDs are currently offered as
options in our customers� systems. Therefore, the demand for these SSDs is unpredictable and fully dependent on end-user requirements. Unless
and until our SSDs are offered as a standard feature in our customers� systems, our demand visibility will continue to be limited.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit was $33.2 million in the third quarter of 2011, compared to $39.9 million in the same period in 2010. Gross profit
as a percentage of revenues was 45.8% in the third quarter of 2011, compared to 46.4% in the third quarter of 2010. The decrease in gross profit
in absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to a 9% decrease in sales of Flash-based products and an 81% decrease in
sales of DRAM products in the third quarter of 2011, compared to the third quarter of 2010.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses are primarily comprised of payroll and payroll-related expenses for our domestic and
international sales and marketing employees and expenses for trade shows. Sales and marketing expenses increased 14% from $5.1 million in
the third quarter of 2010 to $5.8 million in the third quarter of 2011. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from
5.9% in the third quarter of 2010 to 8.1% in the third quarter of 2011. The increase in sales and marketing expenses in absolute dollars was due
primarily to a $560,000 increase in payroll and payroll-related costs due to an increase in employee headcount and stock-based compensation
and a $220,000 increase in sales commissions due primarily to increases in commission rates. The increase in sales and marketing expenses as a
percentage of revenues was due primarily to the fixed nature of certain sales costs such as certain payroll and payroll-related expenses, excluding
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General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses are comprised primarily of personnel costs for our executive and
administrative employees, professional fees and facilities overhead. General and administrative expenses
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increased from $7.1 million in the third quarter of 2010 to $7.3 million in the third quarter of 2011. General and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenues increased from 8.2% in the third quarter of 2010 to 10.1% in the third quarter of 2011. The increase in general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to the fixed nature of certain general and administrative costs and the
decrease in revenues in the third quarter of 2011, compared to the third quarter of 2010.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses are comprised primarily of personnel costs for our engineering staff, product
design consulting fees and material costs related to new product designs. Research and development expenses increased 20% from $12.1 million
in the third quarter of 2010 to $14.5 million in the third quarter of 2011. Research and development expenses as a percentage of revenues
increased from 14.0% in the third quarter of 2010 to 20.0% in the third quarter of 2011. The increase in research and development expenses in
absolute dollars was due primarily to an increase in payroll and payroll-related costs from an increase in research and development employee
headcount from 261 as of September 30, 2010 to 364 as of September 30, 2011, as the result of our expanding global research and development
efforts. The increase in research and development expenses as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to the fixed nature of certain research
and development costs such as payroll and payroll-related expenses and the decrease in revenues in the third quarter of 2011, compared to the
third quarter of 2010.

Special Charges. For the third quarter of 2010, special charges consisted of approximately $625,000 in employee severance and termination
benefits. There were no special charges incurred in the third quarter of 2011.

During the first quarter of 2009, we commenced the first phase of a reduction of our workforce primarily at our Santa Ana, California
headquarters as part of the transition of certain of our operations to our facility in Penang, Malaysia. During the second quarter of 2010, we
commenced the second phase of a reduction in our workforce, which also primarily impacted our Santa Ana, California headquarters. The first
and second phases of the reduction in our workforce were completed as of March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

Other Income. Other income was $6,000 in the third quarter of 2011 and was comprised of interest earned on our cash and cash equivalents,
partially offset by losses on foreign currency transactions. Other income was $248,000 in the third quarter of 2010 and was comprised of
government grant income received from the Malaysian government authority for qualified research and development expenses, interest earned
on our cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments, partially offset by losses on foreign currency transactions.

Provision for Income Taxes. We recorded a provision for income taxes of $686,000 and $1.7 million in the third quarter of 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Our effective tax rate increased from 11.1% in the third quarter of 2010 to 12.4% in the third quarter of 2011 due primarily to a
change in the revenue composition, which resulted in increased earnings in the U.S. that were taxed at rates higher than foreign statutory rates,
partially offset by federal research and development tax credits of $357,000 from which we received income tax benefits in the third quarter of
2011 but did not receive income tax benefits in the third quarter of 2010. As of September 30, 2010, the federal government had not yet
extended the tax credits to be effective for the 2010 tax year. In December 2010, the federal government retroactively applied the research and
development tax credits for the full year 2010 and extended them through December 31, 2011. We operate under an income tax holiday in
Malaysia, which is effective through September 30, 2027 subject to meeting certain conditions. The impact of the Malaysia income tax holiday
decreased our provision for income taxes by $1.0 million and $1.2 million in the third quarter of 2011 and 2010, respectively. The benefit of the
income tax holiday on earnings per share was $0.02 in each of the third quarters of 2011 and 2010.

Income from Continuing Operations. Income from continuing operations was $4.8 million and $13.6 million in the third quarter of 2011 and
2010, respectively. The quarterly decrease in income from continuing operations was due primarily to a $6.7 million decrease in gross profit and
a $2.8 million increase in operating expenses, partially offset by a $1.0 million decrease in the provision for income taxes.

Comparison of Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010

Net Revenues. Our revenues increased 34% from $186.2 million in the first nine months of 2010 to $249.9 million in the first nine months of
2011 due primarily to a 59% increase in Flash-based product sales from $150.4 million in the first nine months of 2010 to $239.8 million in the
first nine months of 2011, partially offset by a 76% decrease in sales of DRAM products from $35.6 million in the first nine months of 2010 to
$8.7 million in the first nine months of 2011. Within Flash-based product sales, shipments of our ZeusIOPS® SSDs into the enterprise market
increased 82% from $104.2 million in the first nine months of 2010 to $189.9 million in the first nine months of 2011. The increase in
Flash-based product revenues was due primarily to a $79.8 million increase in Flash-based product sales to three customers. The decrease in
sales of DRAM products was due primarily to a decrease in DRAM product sales to a single customer.

20

Edgar Filing: STEC, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 37



Table of Contents

Gross Profit. Our gross profit was $110.3 million in the first nine months of 2011, compared to $79.2 million in the same period in 2010. Gross
profit as a percentage of revenues was 44.1% in the first nine months of 2011, compared to 42.5% in the first nine months of 2010. The increase
in gross profit in absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenue was due primarily to a 59% increase in sales of higher margin Flash-based
products and a $1.5 million decrease in write-downs of our inventory related to obsolescence, excess quantities and declines in market value
below our costs.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses are primarily comprised of payroll and payroll-related expenses for our domestic and
international sales and marketing employees and expenses for trade shows. Sales and marketing expenses increased 28% from $13.7 million in
the first nine months of 2010 to $17.6 million in the first nine months of 2011. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue
decreased from 7.4% in the first nine months of 2010 to 7.0% in the first nine months of 2011. The increase in sales and marketing expenses in
absolute dollars was due primarily to a $2.5 million increase in commissions as the result of higher revenues and an increase in commission rates
for the first nine months of 2011, as compared to the same period in 2010, and a $1.2 million increase in payroll and payroll-related costs due to
an increase in employee headcount and stock-based compensation. The decrease in sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenues
was due primarily to the fixed nature of certain sales costs such as payroll and payroll-related expenses, excluding sales commissions, and the
increase in revenues in the first nine months of 2011, compared to the first nine months of 2010.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses are comprised primarily of personnel costs for our executive and
administrative employees, professional fees and facilities overhead. General and administrative expenses increased 7% from $21.1 million in the
first nine months of 2010 to $22.6 million in the first nine months of 2011. General and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues
decreased from 11.3% in the first nine months of 2010 to 9.0% in the first nine months of 2011. The increase in general and administrative
expenses in absolute dollars was due primarily to a $1.8 million increase in payroll and payroll-related costs due to an increase in employee
headcount and stock-based compensation. The decrease in general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to
the fixed nature of certain general and administrative costs such as payroll and payroll-related expenses and the increase in revenues in the first
nine months of 2011, compared to the same period in 2010.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses are comprised primarily of personnel costs for our engineering staff, product
design consulting fees and material costs related to new product designs. Research and development expenses increased 23% from $32.1 million
in the first nine months of 2010 to $39.5 million in the first nine months of 2011. Research and development expenses as a percentage of
revenues decreased from 17.2% in the first nine months of 2010 to 15.8% in the first nine months of 2011. The increase in research and
development expenses in absolute dollars was due primarily to a $4.6 million increase in payroll and payroll-related costs from an increase in
research and development employee headcount from 261 as of September 30, 2010 to 364 as of September 30, 2011, as the result of our
expanding global research and development efforts and higher stock-based compensation of $1.3 million. The decrease in research and
development expenses as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to the fixed nature of certain research and development costs such as
payroll and payroll-related expenses and the increase in revenues in the first nine months of 2011, compared to the first nine months of 2010.

Special Charges. For the first nine months of 2010, special charges consisted of approximately $694,000 in employee severance and termination
benefits and approximately $117,000 related to a gain on the sale of previously impaired assets. There were no special charges in the first nine
months of 2011.

Other Income. Other income was $49,000 in the first nine months of 2011 and was comprised of interest earned on our cash and cash
equivalents, partially offset by losses on foreign currency transactions. Other income was $637,000 in the first nine months of 2010 and was
comprised of government grant income received from the Malaysian government authority for qualified research and development expenses,
interest earned on our cash and cash equivalents, and short-term investments, partially offset by losses on foreign currency transactions.

Provision for Income Taxes. We recorded a provision for income taxes of $2.0 million and $1.2 million in the first nine months of 2011 and
2010, respectively. Our effective tax rate decreased from 9.6% in the first nine months of 2010 to 6.5% in the first nine months of 2011 due
primarily to a change in the revenue composition, which resulted in increased international sales and earnings in jurisdictions outside of the U.S.
that were taxed at rates lower than the U.S. federal statutory rates. The decrease was also due to federal research and development tax credits of
$742,000 from which the Company received income tax benefits in the first nine months of 2011 but did not receive income tax benefits in the
first nine months of 2010. As of September 30, 2010, the federal government had not extended the federal research and development tax credits
for the 2010 tax year. In December 2010, the federal government retroactively applied the research and development tax credits to the full year
2010 and extended them through December 31, 2011. We operate under an income tax holiday in Malaysia, which is effective through
September 30, 2027 subject to meeting certain conditions. The impact of the Malaysia income tax holiday decreased our provision for income
taxes by $5.2 million and $2.7 million in the first nine months of 2011 and 2010, respectively. The benefit of the income tax holiday on earnings
per share was $0.10 and $0.05 for the first nine months of 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Income from Continuing Operations. Income from continuing operations was $28.7 million and $11.2 million in the first nine months of 2011
and 2010, respectively. The increase in income from continuing operations was due primarily to a $31.1 million increase in gross profit, partially
offset by a $12.2 million increase in operating expenses and a $792,000 increase in the provision for income taxes.

Loss from Discontinued Operations. As the result of the sale of the assets of our Consumer Division on February 9, 2007, the Consumer
Division is reflected as discontinued operations. Loss from discontinued operations was $152,000 in the first nine months of 2010 and was due
to a legal settlement related to the resolution of disputes with the acquiring company of our Consumer Division over the final purchase price and
was $0 for the first nine months of 2011.

Comparison of Three Months Ended September 30, 2011 to Three Months Ended June 30, 2011

Net Revenues. Our revenues decreased 12% from $82.5 million in the second quarter of 2011 to $72.5 million in the third quarter of 2011 due
primarily to an 11% decrease in Flash-based product sales from $79.2 million in the second quarter of 2011 to $70.7 million in the third quarter
of 2011. Within Flash-based product sales, shipments of our ZeusIOPS® SSDs into the enterprise market decreased 6% from $62.1 million in the
second quarter of 2011 to $58.4 million in the third quarter of 2011, and sales of our MACH products decreased 34% from $9.7 million in the
second quarter of 2011 to $6.4 million in the third quarter of 2011. The quarterly decrease in Flash-based product revenues was due primarily to
a $6.7 million decrease in Flash-based product sales to a single customer.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit was $33.2 million in the third quarter of 2011, compared to $36.8 million in the second quarter of 2011. Gross
profit as a percentage of revenues was 45.8% in the third quarter of 2011, compared to 44.7% in the second quarter of 2011. The decrease in
gross profit in absolute dollars was due primarily to decreased revenues for Flash-based products. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of
revenues was due primarily to higher-margin ZeusIOPS® products comprising a greater percentage of total sales in the third quarter of 2011 as
compared to the second quarter of 2011, $205,000 of non-recurring engineering service fees earned in the third quarter of 2011 and a $190,000
decrease in write-downs of our inventory related to obsolescence, excess quantities and declines in market value below our costs.

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses are primarily comprised of payroll and payroll-related expenses for our domestic and
international sales and marketing employees and expenses for trade shows. Sales and marketing expenses decreased from $6.1 million in the
second quarter of 2011 to $5.8 million in the third quarter of 2011. Sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue increased from
7.3% in the second quarter of 2011 to 8.1% in the third quarter of 2011. The decrease in sales and marketing expenses in absolute dollars was
due primarily to a $210,000 decrease in commissions as the result of lower revenues for the third quarter of 2011, partially offset by increases in
commission rates. The increase in sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to higher commission rates and
the fixed nature of certain sales costs such as payroll and payroll-related expenses, excluding sales commissions, and the decrease in revenues in
the third quarter of 2011, compared to the second quarter of 2011.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses are comprised primarily of personnel costs for our executive and
administrative employees, professional fees and facilities overhead. General and administrative expenses decreased from $7.9 million in the
second quarter of 2011 to $7.3 million in the third quarter of 2011. General and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues increased
from 9.6% in the second quarter of 2011 to 10.1% in the third quarter of 2011. The decrease in general and administrative expenses in absolute
dollars was due primarily to a $330,000 decrease in estimated bonuses for 2011. The increase in general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of revenues was due primarily to the fixed nature of certain general and administrative costs such as payroll and payroll-related
expenses and the decrease in revenues in the third quarter of 2011, compared to the second quarter of 2011.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses are comprised primarily of personnel costs for our engineering staff, product
design, consulting fees and material costs related to new product designs. Research and development expenses increased 12% from $13.0
million in the second quarter of 2011 to $14.5 million in the third quarter of 2011. Research and development expenses as a percentage of
revenues increased from 15.8% in the second quarter of 2011 to 20.0% in the third quarter of 2011. The increase in research and development
expenses in absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenues was due primarily to a $1.0 million increase in new product development expenses
that were predominantly related to our Flash-based product line and a $310,000 increase in payroll and payroll-related costs from an increase in
research and development employee headcount from 339 as of June 30, 2011 to 364 as of September 30, 2011, as the result of our expanding
global research and development efforts.
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Provision for Income Taxes. We recorded a provision for income taxes of $686,000 and $298,000 in the third quarter of 2011 and the second
quarter of 2011, respectively. Our effective tax rate increased from 3.0% in the second quarter of 2011 to 12.4% in the third quarter of 2011 due
primarily to a change in the revenue composition, which resulted in increased earnings in the U.S. that were taxed at rates higher than foreign
statutory rates. We operate under an income tax holiday in Malaysia, which is effective through September 30, 2027 subject to meeting certain
conditions. The impact of the Malaysia income tax holiday decreased our provision for income taxes by $1.0 million and $1.9 million in the
third quarter of 2011 and second quarter of 2011, respectively. The benefit of the income tax holiday on earnings per share was $0.02 and $0.04
in the third quarter of 2011 and second quarter of 2011, respectively.

Net Income. Net income was $4.8 million and $9.7 million in the third quarter of 2011 and second quarter of 2011, respectively. The quarterly
decrease in net income was due primarily to a $3.6 million decrease in gross profit, a $743,000 increase in operating expenses and a $388,000
increase in the provision for income taxes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Working Capital, Cash and Cash Equivalents

As of September 30, 2011, we had working capital of $266.5 million, including $161.2 million of cash and cash equivalents compared to
working capital of $272.6 million, including $170.5 million of cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2010 and working capital of $248.6
million, including $160.6 million of cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2010. Current assets were 10.1 times current liabilities as of
September 30, 2011, compared to 7.9 times current liabilities as of December 31, 2010, and 6.7 times current liabilities as of September 30,
2010.

As of September 30, 2011, of the $161.2 million of aggregate cash and cash equivalents held by us, the amount of cash and cash equivalents
held by our foreign subsidiaries was $31.6 million. If these funds are needed for our operations in the U.S., we would be required to accrue and
pay U.S. taxes to repatriate these funds. However, our intent is to reinvest these funds for the foreseeable future outside of the U.S. Further, our
current liquidity position and business plan do not demonstrate a need to repatriate the foreign-held funds for our U.S. operations.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was $39.8 million in the first nine months of 2011 and resulted primarily from net income of $28.7
million, a $6.5 million decrease in inventory, $9.7 million of stock-based compensation expense, and non-cash depreciation and amortization of
$9.6 million, partially offset by a $14.7 million decrease in accounts payable. Inventory and accounts payable decreased due primarily to lower
inventory purchases in the third quarter of 2011, compared to the fourth quarter of 2010. In 2010, we had increased purchases of raw materials
under non-cancelable inventory purchase commitments in preparation for anticipated sales demand in 2011.

During the first nine months of 2011, we recorded approximately $2.7 million of legal fees in excess of our insurance deductible under our
director and officer insurance coverage, and our insurance carriers paid $1.5 million of claims for legal fees incurred by us. We have recognized
a liability, with a corresponding receivable that offsets legal expense, until the remainder of our claims are paid by our insurance carrier.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $9.0 million in the first nine months of 2011 resulting primarily from $8.7 million in purchases of
property, plant and equipment related to production and engineering equipment at our Malaysia and U.S. facilities and tenant improvements
made to our facility in the U.S.

As of September 30, 2011, we have made capital expenditures of approximately $43 million for our Malaysia facility primarily related to
building construction costs, acquisition of land and purchases of production equipment. We estimate that total investments in property, plant,
and equipment will be approximately $42 million over the next five years ending September 30, 2016. We expect that the substantial majority of
these estimated investments will relate to our Malaysia operations.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $40.1 million in the first nine months of 2011 and resulted primarily from a $43.7 million repurchase of
our common stock under our share repurchase programs and $926,000 of taxes paid related to net-share settlement of equity awards, partially
offset by $2.9 million of proceeds realized from the exercise of stock options and $1.6 million of excess tax benefits from share-based payment
arrangements.
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From time to time, our board of directors has authorized various programs to repurchase shares of our common stock depending on market
conditions and other factors. In November 2009, our board of directors approved a share repurchase program effective November 10, 2009,
authorizing us to repurchase up to $75 million of our common stock over an 18-month period that expired on May 9, 2011. We did not make any
share repurchases under this program during 2011.

On August 4, 2011, our board of directors approved a share repurchase program authorizing us to repurchase up to $15 million (the �$15 million
Program�) of our common stock effective from August 9, 2011 through August 31, 2011. During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we
repurchased 1,546,700 shares of our common stock at an average price per share of $9.72, including commissions, to complete the authorized
repurchases under the $15 million Program.

On August 29, 2011, our board of directors approved an additional share repurchase program authorizing us to repurchase up to $40 million (the
�$40 million Program�) of our common stock effective from September 15, 2011 through March 30, 2012. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2011, we repurchased 2,919,074 shares of common stock at an average price per share of $9.83, including commissions, under
the $40 million Program. In October 2011, we repurchased an additional 1,144,837 shares of our common stock at an average price per share of
$9.95, including commissions, to complete the authorized repurchases under the $40 million Program. As of October 7, 2011, no amounts are
remaining under the $40 million program.

On November 23, 2009, our subsidiary, STEC Technology Sdn. Bhd. (�STEC Malaysia�) entered into a short-term credit facility (the �Short-term
Facility�) with Deutsche Bank (Malaysia) Berhad. The agreement allows STEC Malaysia to borrow an aggregate principal amount of $10 million
in the form of letters of credit, trust receipts, bills acceptances/financing, banker�s acceptances, and banker�s and shipping guarantees which are
commonly used to conduct business in Asia. Credit under the Short-term Facility will be available until notice of termination by either party.
Borrowings under the Short-term Facility will bear interest at various rates with repayments due between 30 days and 14 months, depending on
the form of borrowing. The Short-term Facility is guaranteed by STEC, Inc. and contains customary affirmative and negative covenants. As of
September 30, 2011, there was approximately $200,000 of banker�s guarantees outstanding under the Short-term Facility and STEC Malaysia
was in compliance with all required covenants. The Short-term Facility will be used to facilitate general business transactions and fund working
capital requirements for STEC Malaysia on an as-needed basis.

We believe that our existing assets, cash and cash equivalents on hand, together with the $10 million Short-term Facility, and cash that we
expect to generate from our operations, will be sufficient to meet our capital needs for at least the next twelve months. However, it is possible
that we may need or elect to raise additional cash to fund our activities beyond the next year to provide additional working capital if our
revenues increase substantially, to expand our international operations or to consummate acquisitions of other businesses, products or
technologies. We could raise such funds by accessing the capital or credit markets to issue equity or debt securities, or by borrowing money. In
addition, even though we may not need additional funds, we may still elect to sell additional equity securities or obtain additional credit facilities
for other reasons. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain additional funds on commercially favorable terms, or at all. If we
raise additional funds by issuing more equity or new convertible debt securities, the ownership percentages of existing shareholders would be
reduced. In addition, the equity or debt securities that we issue may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of the holders of our
common stock.

We determine our future capital and operating requirements and liquidity based, in large part, upon our projected financial performance, and we
regularly review and update these projections due to changes in general economic conditions, our current and projected operating and financial
results, the competitive landscape and other factors. Although we believe we have sufficient capital to fund our activities for at least the next
twelve months, our future capital requirements may vary materially from those now planned. The amount of capital that we will need in the
future will depend on many factors, including:

� General economic and political conditions and specific conditions in the markets we address, including the continuing volatility in
the technology sector and semiconductor industry, and fluctuation in the global economy;

� The inability of certain of our customers who depend on credit to have access to their traditional sources of credit to finance the
purchase of products from us, which may lead them to reduce their level of purchases or to seek credit or other accommodations
from us;

� Whether our revenues increase substantially;
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� Our relationships with suppliers and customers;

� The market acceptance of our products;

� Expansion of our international business, including the opening of offices and facilities in foreign countries;

� Price discounts on our products to our customers;
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� Our pursuit of strategic transactions, including acquisitions, joint ventures and capital investments;

� Our business, product, capital expenditure and research and development plans and product and technology roadmaps;

� The levels of inventory and accounts receivable that we maintain;

� Our entrance into new markets;

� Capital improvements to new and existing facilities;

� Technological advances; and

� Our responses to competitive products.
Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than lease commitments incurred in the normal course of business (see Contractual Obligation table below), we do not have any material
off-balance sheet financing arrangements or liabilities, guarantee contracts, retained or contingent interest in transferred assets, or any
obligations arising out of a material variable interest in an unconsolidated entity. We do not have any majority-owned subsidiaries that are not
included in the consolidated financial statements. Additionally, we do not have any interest in, or relationship with, any special purpose entities.

In the ordinary course of business, we may provide indemnifications of varying scope and terms to customers, vendors, lessors, business partners
and other parties with respect to certain matters, including, but not limited to, losses arising out of our breach of such agreements, services to be
provided by us, or from intellectual property infringement claims made by third parties. In addition, we have entered into indemnification
agreements with our directors and certain of our officers that will require us, among other things, to indemnify them against certain liabilities
that may arise by reason of their status or service as directors or officers. We maintain director and officer insurance, which may cover certain
liabilities arising from our obligation to indemnify our directors and officers in certain circumstances. It is not possible to determine the
maximum potential amount under these indemnification agreements due to the limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unique
facts and circumstances involved in each particular agreement. Such indemnification agreements may not be subject to maximum loss clauses.
Historically, we have not incurred material costs as a result of obligations under these agreements.

Set forth in the table below is our estimate of our significant contractual obligations as of September 30, 2011 (in thousands).

Contractual Obligation Total
Less than
1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years

More than
5 years

Non-cancelable inventory purchase commitments $ 2,471 $ 2,471 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Operating lease obligations 5,021 1,149 1,738 1,565 569
Other non-cancelable purchase commitments 1,071 1,071 �  �  �  
Non-cancelable capital equipment purchase commitments 2,115 2,115 �  �  �  

Total $ 10,678 $ 6,806 $ 1,738 $ 1,565 $ 569

Inflation

Inflation was not a material factor in either revenue or operating expenses in the first nine months of 2011 and 2010.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

We have implemented all new accounting pronouncements that are in effect and that may impact our consolidated financial statements and we
do not believe that there are any other new accounting pronouncements that have been issued that might have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include
the accounts of STEC, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries. All accounts and transactions among STEC and its subsidiaries have been eliminated in
consolidation. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues
and expenses for each period. Information with respect to our critical accounting policies which we believe could have the most significant
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effect on our reported results and require subjective or complex judgments is contained in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in
the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010. There have been no significant changes in our critical accounting
policies and estimates during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 as compared to what was previously disclosed in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Interest Rate Risk

As of September 30, 2011, our cash and cash equivalents were $161.2 million invested primarily in bank deposit accounts, money market
accounts and money market funds. Our cash and cash equivalents are not subject to significant interest rate risk. As of September 30, 2011, the
carrying value of our cash and cash equivalents approximated fair value. Our main investment objectives are the preservation of investment
capital and the maximization of after-tax returns on our investment portfolio. Consequently, we invest in securities that meet high credit quality
standards and we limit the amount of our credit exposure to any one issuer. We do not use derivative instruments for speculative or investment
purposes.

At any time, fluctuations in interest rates could affect interest earnings on our cash and cash equivalents. We believe that the effect, if any, of
reasonably possible near-term changes in interest rates on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows would not be material.
Currently, we do not hedge these interest rate exposures.

In a declining interest rate environment, as short-term investments mature, reinvestment occurs at less favorable market rates. Given the
short-term nature of certain investments, the current interest rate environment may negatively impact our investment income.

Global economic conditions have had widespread negative effects on the financial markets. Due to credit concerns and lack of liquidity in the
short-term funding markets, we have shifted a larger percentage of our portfolio to high credit quality money market funds, which may
negatively impact our investment income, particularly in the form of declining yields.

We are also exposed to interest rate risks due to the possibility of changing interest rates under the �Short-term Facility� described in �Liquidity and
Capital Resources.� Loan draws under the Short-term Facility will bear interest at various rates depending on the type of borrowing. As of
September 30, 2011, there was approximately $200,000 of banker�s guarantees drawn against the Short-term Facility.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

More than 95% of our international sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. Consequently, if the value of the U.S. dollar increases relative to a
particular foreign currency, our products could become relatively more expensive. In addition, we purchase substantially all of our integrated
circuit (�IC�) components from local distributors of Japanese, Korean and Taiwanese suppliers. More than 95% of our purchases from
international vendors are denominated in U.S. dollars. To date, we have not entered any derivative instruments to manage risks related to interest
rate or foreign currency exchange rates.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
We maintain �disclosure controls and procedures,� as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act, that are designed to ensure
that information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC�s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. In designing and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, our management recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and, in reaching a reasonable level of assurance,
our management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating and implementing possible controls and procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation as of September 30, 2011, under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon their

Edgar Filing: STEC, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 47



evaluation and subject to the foregoing, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of September 30, 2011,
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management determined that as of September 30, 2011, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the fiscal quarter then ended that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The information set forth under Note 9 � �Commitments and Contingencies� to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. Before deciding to purchase, hold, or sell our common stock, you should carefully
consider the risks described below in addition to the cautionary statements and risks described elsewhere and the other information contained in
this Report and in our other filings with the SEC, including subsequent reports on Forms 10-Q and 8-K. The risks and uncertainties described
below are not the only ones we face. The descriptions below include any material changes to and supersede the description of the risk factors
affecting our business previously disclosed in �Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors� of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010.

Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also impair our business operations. If
any of these known or unknown risks or uncertainties actually occurs with material adverse effects on STEC, our business, financial condition,
results of operations and/or liquidity could be seriously harmed, which could cause our actual results to vary materially from recent results or
from our anticipated future results. In addition, the trading price of our common stock could decline due to any of these known or unknown risks
or uncertainties, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Historically, sales to a limited number of customers, particularly EMC Corporation, have comprised a significant portion of our revenues
and the loss of, or significant reduction in purchases by, any key customer could materially impact our financial results.

Historically, sales to a relatively limited number of customers have accounted for a significant percentage of our revenues. In the third quarter of
2011 and 2010, sales to our ten largest customers accounted for an aggregate of 91.2% and 90.4%, respectively, of our total revenues. In 2010,
our largest customer was EMC Corporation (�EMC�), which accounted for 37.8% of our total revenues.

The major industries in which we participate are dominated by a limited number of OEM companies; therefore, the rate of SSD adoption will be
driven by a limited number of potential customers. In addition, the industries in which many of our customers compete have experienced, and
may continue to experience, consolidation which may result in increased customer concentration and/or the loss of customers. The composition
of our major customer base changes from quarter to quarter as the market demand for our customers� products changes, and we expect this
variability to continue in the future. Our customers� demand for our products can vary considerably from quarter to quarter, and it is difficult to
forecast our customers� demand beyond the immediate future, as purchases in one period may not be indicative of purchases in future periods.
We expect that sales of our products to a limited number of customers will continue to comprise a substantial portion of our revenues for the
foreseeable future. The loss of, or a significant reduction in purchases by, any of our major customers could materially harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations. For example, the results of our operations during the first half of 2010 were negatively impacted
due to an inventory carryover by EMC. If we are unable to secure significant purchase orders from EMC or our other large customers in the
future, our financial results may be negatively impacted.

We may not be able to maintain or improve our competitive position because of the intense competition in the memory and storage industry.

We conduct business in an industry characterized by intense competition. We primarily compete with Fusion-io, Hitachi GST, Intel, Micron,
Samsung, SanDisk, Seagate, SMART Modular, Toshiba, and Western Digital in connection with the sale of our products. Our competitors
include many large U.S. and international companies that have substantially greater financial, technical, marketing, distribution and other
resources, broader product lines, lower cost structures, greater brand
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recognition and longer-standing relationships with customers and suppliers. These attributes will largely increase should one or both of the
announced mergers of Hitachi GST with Western Digital and Samsung�s HDD business with Seagate close. As a result, our competitors may be
in a better position than us to influence or respond to new or emerging technologies or standards and changes in customer requirements. Our
competitors may also be able to devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products, and may be able to deliver
competitive products at a lower price.

Some of our competitors earn a significant portion of their revenue from business units outside the storage industry. Because they do not depend
solely on sales of storage products to achieve profitability, they may sell storage devices at lower prices and operate their storage business unit at
a loss over an extended period of time while choosing to offset these losses with profits from other business units. In addition, some of our
customers have integrated and may continue to integrate lower cost, lower performance SATA drives with a SAS or Fibre Channel connectivity
bridge instead of our native SAS and Fibre Channel ZeusIOPS® products, thereby offering a lower cost alternative to our products and
negatively affecting the sales of our products to those customers. Our operating results may be adversely affected if we cannot successfully
compete with the pricing by these companies.

Some of our significant suppliers, including Samsung and Toshiba, are also our competitors, and have the ability to manufacture competitive
products at lower costs as a result of their higher levels of integration. In addition, these suppliers may reduce the supply of memory chips
available to the industry or us. We also face competition from current and prospective customers that evaluate our capabilities against the merits
of manufacturing products internally. Competition may arise from new and emerging companies or from the development of cooperative
relationships among our current and potential competitors or third parties to develop products that address the needs of our customers. We
expect our competitors will continue to improve the performance of their current products, reduce their prices and introduce new products that
may offer greater performance, or otherwise render our technology or products obsolete or uncompetitive, any of which could cause a decline in
our operating results or loss of market acceptance of our products.

The introduction and acceptance of new and enhanced versions of our products may cause fluctuations in our operating results.

The introduction of new and enhanced versions of our products may shorten the life cycle of our existing products, or replace sales of some of
our current products, thereby offsetting the benefit of even a successful product introduction, and may cause customers to defer purchasing our
existing products in anticipation of the new and enhanced versions. Conversely, customers may accelerate purchases of existing products and
defer purchases of new life cycle products due to the cost and lead times involved in the qualification of new products. Any of these instances
may cause volatility in our operating results and fluctuations in our inventory levels. The complexity and difficulties in managing product
transitions at the end-of-life stage of a product can also create excess inventory associated with the outgoing product that can also lead to product
obsolescence and increased expenses. Any or all of the above problems could materially harm our business and operating results.

We may be less competitive if we fail to develop new and enhanced products and introduce them in a timely manner.

The enterprise-storage, enterprise-server, and government, defense and industrial applications markets are subject to rapid technological change,
product obsolescence, frequent new product introductions and enhancements, changes in end-user requirements and evolving industry standards.
Our ability to compete in these markets will depend in significant part upon our ability to successfully develop, introduce and sell new and
enhanced products on a timely and cost-effective basis, and to respond to changing customer requirements.

Delays in the development and introduction of new products could provide a competitor a first-to-market opportunity and allow a competitor to
achieve greater market share. Once a customer designs a competitor�s product into its product offering, it becomes significantly more difficult for
us to sell our products to that customer because changing suppliers involves significant cost, time, effort and risk for the customer. Our product
development is inherently risky because it is difficult to foresee developments in technology, anticipate the adoption of new standards,
coordinate our technical personnel, and identify and eliminate design flaws. Defects or errors found in our products after commencement of
production could result in significant delays and damage our reputation and competitive position. New products, even if first introduced by us,
may not gain market acceptance or result in future profitability. Lack of market acceptance for our new products will jeopardize our ability to
recoup research and development expenditures, hurt our reputation and harm our business, financial condition and results of operations. In
addition, after we have developed a new product, our customers will usually test and evaluate our products for three or more months before
qualifying it for production and an additional three or more months to begin volume production of the equipment that incorporates our products.
Even if a customer selects our product to incorporate into its equipment, we have no assurance that the customer will ultimately bring its product
to market or that such effort by our customer will be successful.
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We may also seek to develop products with new standards for our industry; however, it will take time for these new standards and products to be
adopted, for customers to accept and transition to these new products and for significant sales to be generated from them, if this happens at all.
Moreover, broad acceptance of new standards or products by customers may reduce demand for our older products. If this decreased demand is
not offset by increased demand for our new products, our results of operations could be harmed. There can be no assurances that any new
products or standards we develop will be commercially successful.

We have been named as a party to purported class action lawsuits and purported shareholder derivative actions, and we may be named in
additional litigation, all of which could require significant management time and attention and result in significant legal expenses. An
unfavorable outcome in one or more of these lawsuits could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

As described in detail in Note 9 � �Commitments and Contingencies� to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, a purported class action is pending in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California, alleging,
among other things, that our company and certain of our officers and directors violated the federal securities laws by issuing materially false and
misleading statements. A similar purported class action is pending in Orange County Superior Court against our company, certain of our officers
and directors, and four of our underwriters, based on allegations substantially similar to the purported federal class action. In addition, purported
shareholder derivative actions are pending in Orange County Superior Court and U.S. District Court for the Central District of California against
certain of our officers and directors based on allegations substantially similar to those set forth in the purported class action. Regardless of the
merits, the expense of defending such litigation may have a substantial impact if our insurance carriers fail to cover the cost of the litigation, and
the time required to defend the actions could divert management�s attention from the day-to-day operations of our business, which could
adversely affect our business, results of operations and cash flows. An unfavorable outcome in such litigation could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission formal investigation could require significant management time and attention and result in
significant legal expenses. An unfavorable outcome could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

As first disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (�SEC�) is conducting a formal investigation involving trading in our securities. We are fully cooperating with the SEC in regards to
this investigation. On July 19, 2011, the Company received a �Wells Notice� from the SEC stating that the Staff of the SEC (the �Staff�) is
considering recommending that the Commission institute a civil injunctive action against our company, CEO and President for violations of the
antifraud and reporting provisions of the federal securities laws. Under a process established by the SEC, we, in addition to our CEO and
President, have the opportunity to submit to the Staff any reasons of law, policy or fact why we and the two company officers believe that the
civil action should not be brought (a �Wells Submission�) before the Staff makes its formal recommendation to the SEC regarding what action, if
any, should be brought. On August 29, 2011, our Company, CEO and President submitted a Wells Submission to the SEC. We, including our
CEO and President, continue to cooperate with the SEC to attempt to resolve the Staff�s concerns, but there can be no assurance that the SEC will
decide not to bring an action against us or that the investigation will be concluded favorably. Regardless of the merits, the expense of defending
such claims may have a substantial impact if our insurance carriers fail to cover the cost of the defense, and the time required to defend the
actions could divert management�s attention from the day-to-day operations of our business, which could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and cash flows. An unfavorable outcome of this investigation could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We are involved from time to time in claims and litigation over intellectual property rights, which may adversely affect our ability to
manufacture and sell our products.

Our industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights. It may be necessary, from time to time, to initiate
litigation against third parties to preserve our intellectual property rights. Some of our suppliers and licensors have generally agreed to provide
us with various levels of intellectual property indemnification for products and technology we purchase or license from them. A third party could
claim that our products infringe or contribute to the infringement of a patent or other proprietary right. From time to time, we have received, and
may continue to receive in the future, notices that claim we have infringed upon, misappropriated or misused other parties� proprietary rights.
Any of the foregoing events or claims could result in litigation. For example, as described in detail in Note 9 � �Commitments and Contingencies�
to the Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, on September 7, 2011, Solid State
Storage Solutions, Inc. filed a complaint in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas against us and several other defendants
alleging that certain of our products and or/services infringe certain patents allegedly owned by Solid State Storage Solutions, Inc. Due to the
early stage of this lawsuit and the inherent uncertainties of litigation, we are not able to predict either the outcome or a potential range of losses,
if any, at this time. However, this and any future such litigation of this nature, whether as plaintiff or defendant, will likely result in significant
expense to us and
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divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel, whether or not such litigation is ultimately determined in our favor. In the event of
an adverse result in such litigation, we could be required to pay substantial damages, cease the manufacture, use and sale of certain products,
expend significant resources to develop, license or acquire non-infringing technology, discontinue the use of certain processes or obtain licenses
to use the infringed technology. In addition, our suppliers� and licensors� obligation to indemnify us for intellectual property infringement may be
insufficient or inapplicable to any such litigation or other claims of intellectual property infringement.

Our failure to obtain a required license on commercially reasonable terms, or at all, could cause us to incur substantial costs and suspend
manufacturing products using the infringed technology. If we obtain a license, we would likely be required to pay license fees or make royalty
payments for sales under the license. Such payments would increase our costs of revenues and reduce our gross margins and gross profit. If we
are unable to obtain a license from a third party for technology, we could incur substantial liabilities or be required to expend substantial
resources redesigning our products to eliminate the infringement. There can be no assurance that we would be successful in redesigning our
products or that we could obtain licenses on commercially reasonable terms, if at all. Product development or license negotiating would likely
result in significant expense to us and divert the efforts of our technical and management personnel.

Business interruptions could substantially harm our business.

Substantially all of our manufacturing operations are located in Penang, Malaysia. In addition, a substantial amount of our supply chain is
dependent on international suppliers and a significant amount of our products are shipped to international customers. Further, we undertake
various research and development, sales and marketing activities through regional offices in a number of foreign countries. These international
operations are subject to many inherent risks, including but not limited to, human error, government intervention, political instability, acts of
terrorism, power failures, health pandemics and natural disasters, including earthquakes, tsunamis, fires or floods. Our U.S. operations are also
subject to many of these inherent risks. For example, our headquarters and various U.S.-based research and development activities are located in
Southern California, an area with above average seismic activity due to the proximity of major earthquake fault lines. In addition, our Santa Ana,
California headquarters and our facility in Penang, Malaysia are located within close proximity to airports and flight paths.

Any of these risks, could negatively impact our operations which could harm our business. In particular, a disruption to our facility in Penang,
Malaysia could substantially limit our manufacturing capabilities. In addition, the March 2011 earthquake and tsunami in Japan has disrupted the
global supply chain for components manufactured in Japan that are incorporated in our products and in the end user�s products of certain of our
customers. Due to these cross dependencies, supply chain disruptions stemming from these natural disasters in Japan adversely affected the
demand for our products. Similarly, our customers may also be affected by the October 2011 floods in Thailand, which severely damaged its
infrastructure. The impact of these types of business disruptions may result in our customers being unable to obtain a sufficient supply of
components required for their end products, causing them to postpone or cancel orders for our products which could materially harm our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

The market for enterprise Flash-based SSD products is relatively new and rapidly evolving, which makes it difficult to forecast end-user
adoption rates and customer demand, for our products.

The enterprise Flash-based SSD market is relatively new and rapidly evolving. As a result, we may encounter risks and uncertainties related to
our business and future prospects. It is difficult to predict, with any precision, end-user adoption rates, customer demand for our products or the
future growth rate and size of this market. Our ability to predict future sales is further limited because our SSDs are currently offered as options
in our customers� systems. Unless and until our SSDs are offered as a standard feature in our customers� systems, this product runs the risk of
serving a niche market and may never reach mass adoption, and our demand visibility may continue to be limited.

Our dependence on a small number of component suppliers, including integrated circuit device suppliers, and our inability to obtain a
sufficient supply of these components on a timely basis could harm our ability to fulfill orders.

Typically integrated circuit (�IC�) devices represent more than 80% of the component costs of our products. We are dependent on a small number
of suppliers that supply key components and important component-related information used in the development and manufacture of our
products. Since we have no long-term supply contracts, there is no assurance that our suppliers will agree to supply the quantities of components
we may need to meet our production requirements or the component information required to optimize these components in our finished
products. In the first nine months of 2011, Samsung, Toshiba and Hynix supplied substantially all of the IC devices used in our Flash-based
products while Samsung supplied substantially all of the DRAM IC devices used in our DRAM products.

Our customers typically qualify the specific controller and Flash and DRAM ICs that are components in our products as part of the product
qualification process. If any of our suppliers experience quality control problems, our products that utilize that
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supplier�s ICs may be disqualified by one or more of our customers. A supplier disqualification would disrupt our supply of ICs, reduce the
number of suppliers available to us and adversely affect our ability to fulfill our customers� product orders. In some instances, we may be
required to qualify a new supplier�s ICs, which could negatively impact our revenues during the new qualification process. There can be no
assurance that we would be able to find and successfully qualify new suppliers in a timely manner or obtain ICs from new suppliers on
commercially reasonable terms, which could damage our relationships with existing or potential customers and could materially harm our
operating results.

Moreover, from time to time, our suppliers experience shortages in IC devices and foundry services which have resulted in placing their
customers, including us, on component allocation. This means that while we may have customer orders, we may not be able to obtain the
materials that we need to fill those orders in a timely manner or at competitive prices. As a result, our reputation could be harmed, we may lose
business from our customers, our revenues may decline, and we may lose market share to our competitors.

In addition to Flash and DRAM ICs, a number of other components that we use in our products are available from only a single or limited
number of suppliers. In the development of our own application-specific ICs (�ASICs�), we also depend on certain foundry subcontractors to
manufacture these ASICs as well as on certain third-party subcontractors to assemble, obtain packaging materials for, and test these ASICs. Our
dependence on a small number of suppliers and the lack of any guaranteed sources of supply expose us to several risks, including:

� The inability to obtain an adequate supply of components;

� The inability to obtain component information that is used in the optimization of a supplier�s components in our finished products;

� Price increases, late deliveries and poor component quality;

� An unwillingness of a supplier to supply such components to us;

� A key supplier�s or sub-supplier�s inability to access credit necessary to operate its business;

� Failure of a key supplier to remain in business or adjust to market conditions;

� Consolidation among suppliers, resulting in some suppliers exiting the industry or discontinuing the manufacture of components; or

� Failure of a supplier to meet our quality, yield or production requirements.
Since we have no long-term supply contracts with these third-party foundry subcontractors, there is no guarantee that they will devote sufficient
resources to manufacture our components. If we are unable to increase the capacity of our current subcontractors or qualify and engage
additional subcontractors, we may not be able to meet demand for our products, which could adversely affect our revenue and results of
operations. In addition, we are not able to directly control component delivery schedules.

If our products fail to meet our or our customers� specifications for quality and reliability, our results of operations may be adversely
impacted and our competitive position may suffer.

Although we place great emphasis on product quality, we may from time to time experience problems with the performance of our products,
which could result in one or more of the following:
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� Increased costs related to fulfillment of our warranty obligations;

� The reduction, delay or cancellation of orders or the return of a significant amount of products;

� Focused failure analysis causing distraction of the sales, operations and management teams; or

� The loss of reputations in the market and customer goodwill.
These factors could cause our business, financial condition and results of operations to be materially and adversely affected.
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Demand for storage capacity may not continue to grow at current industry estimates, which may lower the prices our customers are willing
to pay for new products.

Our customers� demand for storage capacity may not continue to grow at current industry estimates as a result of developments in the regulation
and enforcement of digital rights management, the emergence of processes such as cloud computing, data deduplication and storage
virtualization, or otherwise. These factors could lead to our customers� storage capacity needs being satisfied at lower prices, thereby decreasing
our revenue. As a result, even with increasing aggregate demand for storage capacity, our average selling prices could decline, which could
adversely affect our operating results.

We may make acquisitions that are dilutive to existing shareholders, result in unanticipated accounting charges or otherwise adversely affect
our results of operations.

We intend to grow our business through business combinations or other acquisitions of businesses, products or technologies that allow us to
complement our existing product offerings, expand our market coverage, increase our engineering workforce or enhance our technological
capabilities. If we make any future acquisitions, we could issue stock that would dilute our shareholders� percentage ownership, incur substantial
debt, reduce our cash reserves or assume contingent liabilities. Furthermore, acquisitions may require material charges and could result in
adverse tax consequences, substantial depreciation, deferred compensation charges, in-process research and development charges, the
amortization of amounts related to deferred compensation and identifiable purchased intangible assets or impairment of goodwill, any of which
could negatively impact our results of operations.

Our limited experience in acquiring other businesses, product lines and technologies may make it difficult for us to overcome problems
encountered in connection with any acquisitions we may undertake.

We continually evaluate and explore strategic opportunities as they arise, including business combinations, strategic partnerships, capital
investments and the purchase, licensing or sale of assets. Our experience in acquiring other businesses, product lines and technologies is limited.
The attention of our management team may be diverted from our core business if we undertake any future acquisitions. Any potential future
acquisition involves numerous risks, including, among others:

� Problems or delays in successfully closing the acquisition;

� Problems or delays assimilating and integrating the purchased operations, personnel, technologies, products and information
systems;

� Unanticipated costs and expenditures associated with the acquisition, including any need to infuse significant capital into the
acquired operations;

� Adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers, customers and strategic partners;

� Risks associated with entering markets and foreign countries in which we have limited or no prior experience;

� Contractual, intellectual property or employment issues;

� Potential loss of key employees of purchased organizations; and
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� Potential litigation arising from the acquired company�s operations before the acquisition.
These risks could disrupt our ongoing business, distract our management and employees, harm our reputation and increase our expenses. Our
inability to overcome problems encountered in connection with any acquisition could further divert the attention of management, utilize scarce
corporate resources and otherwise harm our business. These challenges are magnified as the size of an acquisition increases, and we cannot
assure you that we will realize the intended benefits of any acquisition.

We cannot assure that we will be able to consummate any pending or future acquisitions. We may not be able to find suitable acquisitions
opportunities and even if we do find suitable acquisition opportunities, we may not be able to consummate the acquisitions on commercially
acceptable terms or realize the anticipated benefits of any acquisitions we do undertake.

We expect our quarterly operating results to fluctuate in future periods, causing our stock price to fluctuate or decline.

Our quarterly operating results have fluctuated in the past, and we believe they will continue to do so in the future. Some of these fluctuations
may be more pronounced than they were in the past due to the uncertain current global economic environment. Fluctuations in our operating
results may be due to a number of factors, including, but not limited to, those identified throughout this �Risk Factors� section and the following:

� Impact of changing and recently volatile U.S. and global economic conditions;
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� Our suppliers� production levels for the components used in our products;

� Our ability to procure required components;

� Market acceptance of new and enhanced versions of our products;

� Expansion of our international business, including the opening of offices and facilities in foreign countries;

� The timing of the introduction of new products or components and enhancements to existing products or components by us, our
competitors or our suppliers;

� Fluctuations in the cost of components and changes in the average sales prices of our products;

� Fluctuating market demand for our products;

� Changes in our customer or product revenue mix;

� The loss of one or more of our customers;

� Our ability to successfully integrate any acquired businesses or assets;

� Expenses associated with the start up of new operations or divisions;

� Order cancellations, product returns, inventory buildups by customers and inventory write-downs;

� Manufacturing inefficiencies associated with the start-up of new manufacturing operations, new products and volume production;

� Expenses associated with strategic transactions, including acquisitions, joint ventures and capital investments;

� Our ability to adequately support potential future rapid growth;

� Our ability to absorb manufacturing overhead if revenues decline;

� The effects of litigation; and
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� Increases in our sales and marketing and research and development expenses in connection with decisions to pursue new product
initiatives.

Due to such factors, quarterly revenues and results of operations are difficult to forecast, and period-to-period comparisons of our operating
results may not be predictive of future performance.

Ineffective management of inventory levels or product mix, order cancellations, product returns and inventory write-downs could adversely
affect our results of operations.

With certain exceptions, sales of our products are generally made through individual purchase orders and, in certain cases, are made under
master agreements governing the terms and conditions of the customer relationships. Some customers may have the ability to change, cancel or
delay orders with limited or no penalties. It is difficult to accurately predict what or how many products our customers will need in the future.
Anticipating demand is challenging because our customers face volatile pricing and unpredictable demand for their products and are increasingly
focused on cash preservation and tighter inventory management. We have experienced cancellations of orders and changes in order levels from
period-to-period, and we expect to continue to experience similar cancellations and changes in the future, which could result in fluctuations in
our revenues.

If we are unable to properly monitor, control and manage our inventory and maintain an appropriate level and mix of products to support our
customers� needs, we may incur increased and unexpected costs associated with our inventory. If we manufacture products in anticipation of
future demand that does not materialize, or if a customer cancels outstanding orders, we could experience an unanticipated increase in our
inventory that we may be unable to sell in a timely manner, if at all. If demand does not meet our expectations, we could incur increased
expenses associated with writing off excess or obsolete inventory.

We also maintain third-party inventory hubbing arrangements with certain of our customers. Pursuant to these arrangements, we deliver products
to a customer or a designated third-party warehouse based upon the customer�s projected needs but do not recognize product revenue unless and
until the customer has removed our product from the warehouse to incorporate into

33

Edgar Filing: STEC, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 61



Table of Contents

its end products. If a customer does not take our products under a hubbing arrangement in accordance with the schedule it originally provided us,
our predicted future revenue stream could vary substantially from our forecasts and our results of operations could be materially and adversely
affected. Additionally, since we own inventory that is physically located in a third party�s warehouse, our ability to effectively manage inventory
levels may be impaired, causing our total inventory turns to decrease, which could increase expenses associated with excess and obsolete
inventory and negatively impact our cash flow. In addition, while we may not be contractually obligated to accept returned products, we may
determine that it is in our best interest to accept returns in order to maintain good relationships with our customers. Product returns would
increase our inventory and reduce our revenues. Alternatively, we could end up with too little inventory and we may not be able to satisfy
demand, which could have a material adverse effect on our customer relationships. Our risks related to inventory management are exacerbated
by our strategy of closely matching inventory levels with product demand, leaving limited margin for error. We have had to in the past and may
need to in the future write down inventory for reasons such as obsolescence, excess quantities and declines in market value below our costs.
These inventory write-downs can have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating results.

Declines in our average sales prices may result in declines in our revenues and gross profit.

Our industry is competitive and historically has been characterized by declines in average sales prices. Our average sales prices may decline due
to several factors, including competition, overcapacity in the worldwide supply of DRAM and Flash memory components as a result of
worldwide economic conditions, increased manufacturing efficiencies, implementation of new manufacturing processes and expansion of
manufacturing capacity by component suppliers. In the past, overcapacity has resulted in significant declines in component prices, which in turn
has negatively impacted our average sales prices, revenues and gross profit. In addition, since a large percentage of our sales are to a small
number of customers that are primarily distributors and large OEMs, these customers have exerted, and we expect they will continue to exert,
pressure on us to make price concessions. If not offset by increases in volume of sales or the sales of newly-developed products with higher
margins, decreases in average sales prices would likely have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

Our business could be adversely affected by the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry.

The semiconductor industry, including the memory markets in which we compete, is highly cyclical and characterized by constant and rapid
technological change, rapid product obsolescence and price erosion, evolving standards, and wide fluctuations in product supply and demand.
The industry has experienced significant downturns often connected with, or in anticipation of, maturing product cycles of both semiconductor
companies� and their customers� products and declines in general economic conditions.

These downturns have been characterized by diminished product demand, production overcapacity, high inventory levels and accelerated
erosion of average sales prices which have negatively impacted our average sales prices, revenues and earnings. Any future downturns could
have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Further industry consolidation could provide competitive advantages to our competitors.

The storage industry has experienced consolidation over the past several years. Consolidation by our competitors may enhance their capacity,
abilities and resources and lower their cost structure, causing us to be at a competitive disadvantage. Additionally, continued industry
consolidation may lead to uncertainty in areas such as component availability, which could negatively impact our cost structure.

The manufacturing of our products is complex and subject to production output yield problems, which could decrease available supply and
increase costs.

The manufacture of our Flash controllers, Flash-based products and stacked DRAM products is a complex process, and it is often difficult for
companies such as ours to achieve, after completed assembly and testing, acceptable production output yields (i.e., the ratio of usable product
output to expected output based on given component inputs). Reduced production yields could decrease available supply and increase costs.
Flash controller production output yields depend on both our product design and the manufacturing process technology unique to our
semiconductor foundry partners. Because low yields may result from either design defects or process difficulties, we may not identify yield
problems until well into the production cycle, when an actual product defect exists and can be analyzed and tested. In addition, many of these
yield problems are difficult to diagnose and time consuming or expensive to remedy.
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The execution of our business strategy depends on our ability to retain key personnel, including our executive officers, and to attract
qualified personnel.

Competition for employees in our industry is intense. We have had and may continue to have difficulty hiring the necessary engineering, sales
and marketing and management personnel to support our business strategy. The successful implementation of our business model and business
strategy depends on the continued contributions of our senior management and other key research and development, sales and marketing and
operations personnel, including Manouch Moshayedi, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mark Moshayedi,
our President, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Technical Officer, Secretary and a Director, and Raymond D. Cook, our Chief Financial Officer.
The loss of any key employee, the failure of any key employee to perform in his or her current position, or the inability of our officers and key
employees to expand, train and manage our employee base would have an adverse effect on the execution of our business strategy.

Our efforts to expand our business internationally may not be successful and may expose us to additional risks that may not exist in the
United States.

We sell our products to customers in foreign countries and seek to increase our level of international business activity through the expansion of
our operations into select markets, including Asia and Europe. Such strategy may include opening sales offices in foreign countries, the
outsourcing of manufacturing operations, establishing joint ventures with foreign partners, and the establishment of additional manufacturing
operations in foreign countries.

A failure to successfully and timely integrate these operations into our global infrastructure will have a negative impact on our overall
operations, cause us to delay or forego some of the original perceived benefits of operating internationally, such as lower average production and
engineering labor costs, better access to global markets, improved supply chain efficiency, reduced lead times, increased manufacturing
efficiency through investments in new state-of-the-art equipment and a lower overall long-term effective tax rate.

Establishing and running operations in a foreign country or region presents numerous risks, including:

� Difficulties and costs of staffing and managing operations in certain foreign countries;

� Foreign laws and regulations, which may vary country by country, and may impact how we conduct our business;

� Higher costs of doing business in certain foreign countries, including different employment laws;

� Difficulty protecting our intellectual property rights from misappropriation or infringement;

� Political or economic instability;

� Changes in import/export duties;

� Necessity of obtaining government approvals;

� Trade restrictions;

� Work stoppages or other changes in labor conditions;
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� Difficulties in collecting accounts receivables on a timely basis or at all;

� Changes in local tax regulations;

� Changes to or untimely lapses in government incentives;

� Longer payment cycles and foreign currency fluctuations; and

� Seasonal reductions in business activity in some parts of the world, such as Europe.
In addition, changes in policies and/or laws of the U.S. or foreign governments resulting in, among other things, higher taxation, currency
conversion limitations, restrictions on fund transfers or the expropriation of private enterprises, could reduce the anticipated benefits of our
international expansion. Moreover, as a result of our international operations, we are subject to tax in multiple jurisdictions. If any taxing
authority (in the U.S. or otherwise) were to successfully challenge our interpretation of the applicable tax laws or our determination of the
income and expenses attributable to operations in a specific jurisdiction, we could be required to pay additional taxes, interest and penalties.
Furthermore, any actions by countries in which we conduct business to reverse policies that encourage foreign trade or investment could
adversely affect our business. If we fail to realize the anticipated revenue growth of our future international operations, our business and
operating results could suffer.
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We expect that our strategy to expand our international operations will require the expenditure of significant resources and the efforts and
attention of our management. Unlike some of our competitors, we have limited experience operating our business in foreign countries. Some of
our competitors may have a substantial advantage over us in attracting customers in certain foreign countries due to earlier established
operations in that country, greater knowledge with respect to cultural differences of customers residing in that country and greater brand
recognition and longer-standing relationships with customers in that country. If our international expansion efforts in any foreign country are
unsuccessful, we may decide to cease these foreign operations, which would likely harm our reputation and cause us to incur expenses and
losses.

We face risks associated with doing business in foreign countries, including foreign currency fluctuations and trade barriers, that could lead
to a decrease in demand for our products or an increase in the cost of the components used in our products.

The volatility of general economic conditions and fluctuations in currency exchange rates affect the prices of our products and the prices of the
components used in our products. International sales, which are derived from billings to foreign customers, accounted for 67% and 58%, of our
total revenues for the first nine months of 2011 and 2010, respectively. In the first nine months of 2011, 41% and 15% of our revenues were
derived from billings to customers in Singapore and the Czech Republic, respectively. In the first nine months of 2010, 18%, 14%, and 12% of
our revenues were derived from billings to customers in Singapore, Malaysia, and the Czech Republic, respectively. In the first nine months of
2011 and 2010, more than 95% of our international sales were denominated in U.S. dollars, and if the U.S. dollar experiences significant
appreciation relative to the currency of a specific country, the prices of our products will rise in such country and our products may be less
competitive. In addition, we cannot be sure that our international customers will continue to be willing to place orders denominated in U.S.
dollars. If they do not, our revenues and results of operations will be subject to foreign exchange fluctuations, which could harm our business.
We do not hedge against foreign currency exchange rate risks.

Furthermore, we purchase a majority of the Flash and DRAM components used in our products from foreign suppliers. Although our purchases
of Flash and DRAM components are currently denominated in U.S. dollars, a devaluation of the U.S. dollar relative to the currency of a foreign
supplier would likely result in an increase in our cost of Flash and DRAM components.

Our intellectual property may not be adequately protected, which could harm our competitive position.

Our intellectual property is critical to our success. As of September 30, 2011, we owned 35 patents and 56 additional patent applications were
pending. Although we protect our intellectual property rights through patents, trademarks, copyrights and trade secret laws, confidentiality
procedures and employee disclosure and invention assignment agreements it is possible that our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights
may not:

� Prevent the challenge, invalidation or circumvention of our existing patents;

� Result in patents that lead to commercially viable products or provide competitive advantages for our products;

� Prevent our competitors from independently developing similar products, duplicating our products or designing around the patents
owned by us;

� Prevent third-party patents from having an adverse effect on our ability to do business;

� Provide adequate protection for our intellectual property rights;

� Prevent disputes with third parties regarding ownership of our intellectual property rights;
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� Prevent disclosure of our trade secrets and know-how to third parties or into the public domain; and

� Result in patents from any of our pending applications.
In addition, despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights and confidential information, third parties could copy or otherwise
obtain and make unauthorized use of our technologies or independently develop similar technologies. Furthermore, if any of our patents are
challenged and found to be invalid, our ability to exclude competitors from making, using or selling the same or similar products related to such
patents would cease. From time to time, we receive letters from third parties suggesting that some or all of our products may be covered by third
party patents. In each instance, our management determines whether the letters have sufficient justification and specificity to require a response.
When they believe it is appropriate to do so, our management seeks the advice of counsel on these matters.
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We have, on at least one occasion, applied for and may in the future apply for patent protection in foreign countries. The laws of foreign
countries, however, may not adequately protect our intellectual property rights. Many U.S. companies have encountered substantial infringement
problems in foreign countries. Because we sell some of our products overseas, we have exposure to foreign intellectual property risks.

Our indemnification obligations for products that infringe the intellectual property rights of others could require us to pay substantial
damages.

We currently have in effect a number of agreements in which we have agreed to defend, indemnify and hold harmless our customers and
suppliers from damages and costs which may arise from the infringement by our products and services of third-party patents, trademarks or other
proprietary rights. The scope of such indemnity varies, but may, in some instances, include indemnification for damages and expenses, including
attorneys� fees. We may from time to time be engaged in litigation as a result of such indemnification obligations. Our insurance does not cover
intellectual property infringement. The term of these indemnification agreements is generally perpetual any time after execution of the
agreement. The maximum potential amount of future payments we could be required to make under these indemnification agreements is
generally unlimited. We may periodically have to respond to claims and litigate these types of indemnification obligations. Any such
indemnification claims could require us to pay substantial damages that may result in a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

Our indemnification obligations to our customers and suppliers for product defects could require us to pay substantial damages.

A number of our product sales and product purchase agreements provide that we will defend, indemnify and hold harmless our customers and
suppliers from damages and costs which may arise from product warranty claims or claims for injury or damage resulting from defects in our
products. We maintain insurance to protect against certain claims associated with the use of our products, but our insurance coverage may not be
adequate to cover all or any part of the claims asserted against us. A successful claim brought against us that is in excess of, or excluded from,
our insurance coverage could substantially harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Global economic conditions and the global financial crisis may have an impact on our business and financial condition in ways that we
currently cannot predict.

As a result of the prolonged downturn in global economic activity, spending on information technology has deteriorated significantly in the U.S.
and many other countries may remain depressed for the foreseeable future. Uncertainty in the financial and credit markets have caused many of
our customers to postpone or cancel purchases. These worldwide economic conditions make it extremely difficult for our customers, our vendors
and us to accurately forecast and plan future business activities, and they could cause our customers to further reduce or slow spending on our
products, which would delay and lengthen sales cycles. Furthermore, during challenging economic times our customers may face issues gaining
timely access to sufficient credit, which could result in an impairment of their ability to make timely payments to us. If that were to occur, we
may experience increased collection times or write-offs, which could have a material adverse effect on our revenues and cash flow. Similarly,
our vendors may also face issues gaining timely access to sufficient credit, which could result in an impairment of their ability to supply us with
components that are needed in the manufacture of our products. If that were to occur, we may experience delays in our production and increased
costs associated with our qualification of additional new vendors and replacement of their components, which could have a material adverse
effect on our revenues and cash flow. Finally, our ability to access the capital markets may be restricted, which could have an impact on our
flexibility to pursue additional expansion opportunities and maintain our desired level of revenue growth in the future. These and other economic
factors could have a material adverse effect on demand for our products and services and on our financial condition and operating results.

Failure to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting could cause our investors to lose confidence and adversely affect the
market price of our common stock.

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires that we maintain internal control over financial reporting that meets applicable
standards. We may err in the design or operation of our controls, and all internal control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because there are inherent limitations in all control systems,
there can be no absolute assurance that all control issues have been or
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will be detected. In addition, a failure to maintain such controls could result in misstatements in our financial statements. If we are unable, or are
perceived as unable, to produce reliable financial reports due to internal control deficiencies, investors could lose confidence in our reported
financial information and operating results, which could result in a negative market reaction.

Failure to comply with governmental laws and regulations could harm our business.

Our business is subject to regulation by various U.S. federal, state, local and foreign governmental authorities and agencies. Such regulation
includes employment and labor laws, workplace safety, product safety, environmental laws, consumer protection laws, import/export controls,
federal securities laws and tax.

As a global company, we are subject to varied and complex laws, regulations and customs domestically and internationally. These laws and
regulations relate to a number of aspects of our business, including trade protection, import and export control, data and transaction processing
security, records management, gift policies, employment and labor relations laws, workplace safety, product safety, environmental laws, federal
securities laws, tax regulations, and other regulatory requirements affecting our foreign operations. The application of these laws and regulations
to our business is often unclear and may at times conflict. Compliance with these laws and regulations may involve significant costs or require
changes in our business practices that result in reduced revenue and profitability. Non-compliance could also result in fines, damages, criminal
sanctions against us, our officers, or our employees, prohibitions on the conduct of our business, and damage to our reputation. We incur
additional legal compliance costs associated with our global operations and could become subject to legal penalties in foreign countries if we do
not comply with local laws and regulations, which may be substantially different from those in the U.S. In many foreign countries, particularly
in those with developing economies, it may be common to engage in business practices that are prohibited by U.S. regulations applicable to us,
such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Although we implement policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with these laws,
there can be no assurance that all of our employees, contractors and agents, as well as those companies to which we outsource certain aspects of
our business operations, including those based in foreign countries where practices which violate such U.S. laws may be customary, will not take
actions in violation of our internal policies.

Noncompliance with applicable regulations or requirements could subject us to investigations, sanctions, mandatory product recalls,
enforcement actions, disgorgement of profits, fines, damages, civil and criminal penalties, or injunctions. These actions could harm our business,
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. If any governmental sanctions or fines are imposed, or if we do not prevail in any
possible civil or criminal litigation, our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows could be materially adversely affected.
In addition, responding to any action will likely result in a significant diversion of management�s attention and resources and an increase in
professional fees.

In addition, from time to time, we have received, and expect to continue to receive, complaints from former employees who threaten to bring
claims against us alleging that we have violated one or more labor and employment regulations. In certain of these instances, the former
employees have brought formal claims against us and we expect that we will encounter similar actions against us in the future. An adverse
outcome in any such litigation could require us to pay contractual damages, compensatory damages, punitive damages, attorneys� fees and costs.

Compliance with evolving environmental regulations and standards could harm our business.

We may be required to meet and adjust to evolving environmental requirements relating to the material composition of our products. As
environmental requirements change, substituting particular components with conforming components to meet new environmental standards may
prove to be difficult or costly, and additional redesign efforts could result in production delays. Our operations may be affected by significant
changes to existing or future environmental laws and regulations, including those imposed in response to climate change concerns and other
actions commonly referred to as �green initiatives.� Although we cannot predict the ultimate impact of any such new laws and regulations, they
may result in additional costs or decreased revenue, which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Changes in the applicable tax laws could materially affect our future results.

We operate in different countries throughout the world and are subject to taxation in a variety of jurisdictions. As a result, our future effective
tax rates could be impacted by changes in the applicable tax laws of such jurisdictions or the interpretation of such tax laws. It is not possible to
accurately determine the likelihood of changes in tax laws or in the administration of those laws, but any increase in our effective tax rate would
adversely affect our future after-tax profits.
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We may have exposure to greater than anticipated tax liabilities.

Our future income taxes could be adversely affected if earnings are higher than anticipated in jurisdictions where we have higher statutory tax
rates, by changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities, or changes in tax laws, regulations, accounting principles, or
interpretations thereof. We are subject to regular review and audit by both domestic and foreign tax authorities. Any adverse outcome of such a
review or audit could negatively impact our operating results and financial condition. In addition, the determination of our global provision for
income taxes and other tax liabilities requires significant judgment and in the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions where
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Additionally, our calculations of income taxes are based on our interpretations of applicable tax laws
in the jurisdictions in which we file. Although we believe our tax estimates are reasonable, the ultimate tax outcome may differ from the
amounts recorded in our financial statements and may materially affect our financial results in the period or periods for which such
determination is made.

Two of our largest shareholders are executives and directors of our company and their interests may diverge from other shareholders.

Manouch Moshayedi and Mark Moshayedi are brothers who (along with a third brother Mike Moshayedi) founded our company. They have
owned a substantial amount of shares since our inception. As of September 30, 2011, Manouch and Mark Moshayedi beneficially owned
approximately 17% of our outstanding common stock. As shareholders, Manouch and Mark Moshayedi may have interests that diverge from
those of other holders of our common stock. In addition, Manouch and Mark Moshayedi are executive officers and directors. As a result, they
have the potential ability to control or influence all matters requiring approval by our shareholders, including approval of significant corporate
transactions and the decision of whether a change in control will occur. This potential control could affect the price that certain investors may be
willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

Certain provisions in our charter documents and stock option plan could prevent or delay a change in control and, as a result, negatively
impact our shareholders.

We have taken a number of actions that could have the effect of discouraging a takeover attempt. For example, provisions in our articles of
incorporation and bylaws could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so would be beneficial to our shareholders.
These provisions also could limit the price that certain investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

These provisions include:

� Limitations on how special meetings of shareholders can be called;

� Advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted upon by
shareholders at shareholder meetings;

� Elimination of cumulative voting in the election of directors;

� The right of a majority of directors in office to fill vacancies on the board of directors; and

� The ability of our board of directors to issue, without shareholder approval, �blank check� preferred stock to increase the number of
outstanding shares and thwart a takeover attempt.

In addition, provisions of our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and 2010 Incentive Award Plan allow for the automatic vesting of all outstanding equity
awards granted under the 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and 2010 Incentive Award Plan upon a change in control under certain circumstances. Such
provisions may also have the effect of discouraging a third party from acquiring us, even if doing so would be beneficial to our shareholders.

Our stock price is volatile.
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Our common stock has been publicly traded since September 2000. The market price of our common stock has been subject to significant
fluctuations since the date of our initial public offering. The stock market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume
fluctuations that have affected the market prices of securities, particularly securities of technology companies. As a result, the market price of
our common stock may materially decline, regardless of our operating performance.
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In addition, the market prices of securities of other technology companies have been and remain volatile. This volatility has significantly
affected the market prices of securities of many technology companies for reasons frequently unrelated to the operating performance of the
specific companies. Accordingly, you may not be able to resell your shares of common stock at or above the price you paid. In the past, we and
other companies that have experienced volatility in the market price of their securities have been, and we currently are, the subject of securities
class action litigation. Litigation of this type is often expensive, diverts management�s attention and resources and may have a material adverse
effect on our business and operating results.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following is a summary of our common stock repurchased and average price paid per share, including commissions, for the three months
ended September 30, 2011:

Period
Total Number of

Shares Purchased (3)
Average Price Paid per

Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part

of
Publicly

Announced
Programs (1) (2)

Maximum Dollar Value
that May Yet be
Purchased Under

the
Programs

As of June 30, 2011 �  $ �  �  
July 1 through July 31, 2011 �  $ �  �  
August 1 through August 31, 2011 1,546,700 $ 9.72 1,546,700
September 1 through September 30, 2011 2,919,074 $ 9.83 2,919,074

Total 4,465,774 $ 9.79 4,465,774 $ 11,367,986(2) 

(1) On August 4, 2011, our board of directors approved a share repurchase program authorizing us to repurchase up to $15 million of our
common stock from August 9, 2011 through August 31, 2011.

(2) On August 29, 2011, our board of directors approved an additional share repurchase program authorizing us to repurchase up to $40
million of our common stock effective from September 15, 2011 through March 30, 2012. In October 2011, we repurchased 1,144,837
shares of common stock at an average price per share of $9.95, including commissions, to complete the authorized repurchases under this
program.

(3) Repurchases under our share repurchase programs were made in open market or through privately negotiated transactions in
compliance with Rule 10b-18 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Repurchased shares were
returned to the status of authorized but unissued shares of common stock and may be issued by us in the future. All shares were
purchased pursuant to the share repurchase programs described in footnotes 1 and 2.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.

ITEM 4. REMOVED AND RESERVED

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Incorporation by Reference
Exhibit

Index Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Filing Date

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws 8-K 3.1 September 27, 2011

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished herewith

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished herewith

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* The information in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed �filed� for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the �Exchange Act�), or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, nor shall they be deemed incorporated by reference in
any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act (including this Report), unless the Registrant specifically
incorporates the foregoing information into those documents by reference.

** Pursuant to applicable securities laws and regulations, the Company is deemed to have complied with the reporting obligation relating to
the submission of interactive data files in such exhibits and are not subject to liability under any anti-fraud provisions of the federal
securities laws as long as the Company has made a good faith attempt to comply with the submission requirements and promptly amend
the interactive data files after becoming aware that the interactive data files fail to comply with the submission requirements. Users of this
data are advised that, pursuant to Rule 406T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed and otherwise are not subject to liability.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

STEC, INC.,
a California corporation

Date: November 8, 2011 /S/    RAYMOND D. COOK

Raymond D. Cook

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer and Duly Authorized Signatory)
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STEC, INC.

Index to Exhibits

Incorporation by Reference
Exhibit

Index Exhibit Description Form Exhibit Filing Date

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws 8-K 3.1 September 27, 2011

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished herewith

32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished herewith

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* The information in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 shall not be deemed �filed� for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the �Exchange Act�), or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section, nor shall they be deemed incorporated by reference in
any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act (including this Report), unless the Registrant specifically
incorporates the foregoing information into those documents by reference.

** Pursuant to applicable securities laws and regulations, the Company is deemed to have complied with the reporting obligation relating to
the submission of interactive data files in such exhibits and are not subject to liability under any anti-fraud provisions of the federal
securities laws as long as the Company has made a good faith attempt to comply with the submission requirements and promptly amend
the interactive data files after becoming aware that the interactive data files fail to comply with the submission requirements. Users of this
data are advised that, pursuant to Rule 406T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed and otherwise are not subject to liability.
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